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Chairman’s Statement

HEzARE Dear Shareholders,

RAZRREREERERAT(ART ) REMEBZA  On behalf of EGL Holdings Company Limited (“Company”) and its

FASEAIAER DMAMSARFIREANEFEEZE  subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”),

2015FE12A31ALEE([AREE )R EEL - (K | am pleased to present to you the annual results of the Group

AEBNEREBZ  REIUEAE |NELRMEMRRE  for the year ended 31 December 2015 (“Year”). In continuing

ENELERG  LEBTERERNELEE - RS pursuit of the Group’s development goals, with customer-oriented

ERSIHEMNKE  BESATE- business philosophy, sincere professional quality services,
and continual steady expansion of our business network and
scope, we achieved outstanding results for the Year. This is very
encouraging for all of us!

RXHE Yuen Man Ying
FJ/E Chairman
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During the Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$1,858.3 million (2014: HK$1,685.2 million),
representing annual growth of 10.3%. Profit attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately HK$150.5 million (2014:
HK$74.5 million), representing annual growth of 102.0%. For the
remarkable growth in our business performance, please refer to
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” below
for details.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK10.0 cents per share for 2015, together with the interim
dividend of HK5.0 cents per share paid, the total dividend per
share for the full year of 2015 will be HK15.0 cents (2014: Nil),
with the proviso that the proposed final dividend for 2015 is
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has committed to providing diversified and quality
services and planning innovative itineraries for our customers.
2015 is our “Year of in-depth travel”, in keeping with market
development trends, we launched a variety of theme travel
products featuring in-depth and distinctively classy travel
experiences with extraordinary elements for our customers. We
have designed with ingenuity many distinctive travel itineraries
for our customers to immerse in the refined appreciation of
cultural essences around the world while on our tours, for a
unique, touching and tailored travel experience. The Group also
displays such cultural essences in our themed branch outlets,
for a preview of some local cultures like that of Shandong and
Miyazaki.

20155 % 2015 Annual Report 007
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A range of tough and challenging socio-economic conditions
occurred in the Year, which included slowdown in global
economic growth, volatility in equity and foreign exchange
markets, bomb explosion in Thailand, haze pollution in the
Southeast Asia caused by Indonesia’s forest fires, outbreak
of Middle East respiratory syndrome in Korea and outbreak of
Dengue fever in Taiwan, all these conditions affected consumer
confidence and the tourism industry to a certain extent.
Conversely, these conditions have driven us to push towards
sustainable development, adopt forward looking investment
strategies with synergy for our business segments, utilise our
healthy financial resources prudently in investment projects, in
order to promote the expansion of the Group’s businesses and
strengthen the foundation of our core businesses. The Group
has established new travel agency companies in both Japan and
Korea during 2015, holding an equity interest of approximately
38.0% in each of these companies with operation commenced
in the second and third quarter of 2015 respectively. These
companies have opened up more business development
opportunities and maintained our product quality. In another area,
with gradual increase in the demand for quality travel products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), there are enormous
development potentials.
representative office in the PRC to expand our scope of business

In 2015, the Group set up a resident

coverage and as a base for future business development in the
PRC. In addition, the Group is applying for the establishment of a
wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC.

On another note, the Group is committed to our duties and
social responsibility of corporate citizenship, with loving care by
donation and actual visits to people in need. During Chinese
New Year, we visited single elderly people and sent them warm
regards. We also participated in the volunteer experience day
of Food Angel for meal preparation and delivery, took part in
the Yan Oi Tong Walkathon, UNICEF Charity Run and Diamond
Sedan Competition, etc. With action, we expressed our concern
for the society and serve our community. On the environmental
front, we support with enthusiasm the concept of green office
and encourage energy consumption reduction and energy saving
measures, concurrently improving energy efficiency in the office
and to promote environmental awareness. The more effective use
of energy resources not only brings about cost savings, but also
reduces the consumption of environmental resources. We strive
in our way to contribute to the sustainable development of our
planet!
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BUSINESS PROSPECT

Under our prestigious brand name, years and years of strategic
operational experience and our solid financial strength, the Group
captures business opportunities from ever changing market trends,
and creates greater investment returns for our shareholders.
The Group continues to optimise management of package tour
ground handling operation. In December 2015, together with a
Taiwanese business partner, the Group established Hit Travel
Service Co. Ltd (B IRITHMRMDBRAF]) in Taiwan. The Group
holds 62.0% interest in this Taiwanese company that is engaged
principally to serve the Group’s package tours from Hong Kong to
Taiwan with operation having commenced in January 2016. The
abundance in business opportunities urges our Group to strive for
improvement of the quality of our service in a comprehensive way.
In addition to the above investment in ground handling operation,
the Group together with a Japanese business partner, established
Kabushiki Kaisha ZIPANG. S. S in Osaka, Japan in November
2015. The Group holds 80.0% interest in this company that is
engaged mainly in providing travel bus services with operation
planned to commence in the second quarter of 2016. The above
two investments, in Taiwan and Japan, are expected to enhance
control of operating costs, ensure supreme service quality and
contribute to the Group’s profit.

As an innovation to our legendary core business, we employ
“virtual reality” technology in response to our customers’ strong
demand for wedding related products in overseas locations,
which we offer one-stop wedding planning service with plenty
of diversified options offered to our customers to enrich their
wedding moments overseas. Our specialty shop for planning of
overseas wedding events is located in Central district and is in
service since February 2016. Our staff at the specialty shop is
sincere and attends to our customers’ individual preferences for a
unique, supreme and romantic wedding.

20155 % 2015 Annual Report 009
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Looking ahead into next year, the Group continues to explore
promising development projects and invest in travel related
projects. With the continuing benefits of the depreciation in
Japanese yen against Hong Kong dollar, the number of tourists
visiting Japan continue to increase. For hotel reservations in
Japan, it is difficult to get hotel accommodation in Osaka,
Japan. In 2015, this situation caused an airline to change their
regular flight routes from Osaka to Nagoya in central Japan.
The operation of Kansai International Airport in Osaka (which
was previously run by a government unit) is now to be managed
commercially, which the lifting cost of aircrafts is expected to be
reduced. Further, this airport will operate 24 hours a day which
brings tremendous business potential, airlines will likely schedule
additional flights bringing more tourists to Osaka.

In view of this, the Group has been exploring the opportunity for
acquisition of a hotel locating in the prime district of Osaka, and
is proactively identifying the acquisition target hotel with about
300 rooms. This is a rare business opportunity that the Group
has come upon, we expect the rate of investment return to be
considerable. The feasibility study is well under way, the Company
will, as and when necessary, make further announcement in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). The
Company reiterates that the aforesaid hotel development project
will be financed by sources other than the proceeds from listing,
and that there is no present intention to raise additional fund for
the starting up of the Group’s hotel business.

To conclude, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express
our deepest gratitude to all the management and staff for
their diligence and devotion to the Group’s growth under our
corporate belief and with team spirit during the past year. My
deepest appreciation is also expressed to all our shareholders,
customers and business partners for their constant support and
trust. To capitalise on our past achievements for the future, the
Group will continue to work with concerted efforts, and engage in
responsible decisions and actions for continuous excellent results.

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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GROUP OVERVIEW

Adhering to the Group’s long-term and sustained commitments
to seize market opportunities together with enhancing investment
returns and strategic synergy, the Group has achieved robust
growth with revenue grew by 10.3% to approximately HK$1,858.3
million for the Year (2014: HK$1,685.2 million). Profit attributable
to owners of the Company grew by 102.0% from approximately
HK$74.5 million in 2014 to approximately HK$150.5 million in
2015. Such growth was primarily due to the significant increase in
the portion of revenue derived from Japan-bound package tours
and the improvement in their gross profit margin resulted from
higher demand brought by depreciation in Japanese yen (“JPY”)
against Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”). It also demonstrated the
Group’s ability to keep abreast of market changes and respond to
ever-changing market demands in a timely manner.
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Basic earnings per share for profit attributable to owners of the
Company for 2015 was approximately HK29.95 cents (2014:
HK18.20 cents). Details of utilisation of net proceeds from the
initial public offering (“IPO”) of the shares of the Company will be
discussed in the section headed “Use of proceeds from the IPO”
of this annual report.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The principal activities of the Group comprise provision of
package tours, free independent travellers (“FIT”) package,
individual travel elements (together with FIT packages referred
to as “FIT Products”) and ancillary travel related products and
services. In 2015, the Group has invested in newly setup travel
agency companies in Japan and Korea, which extended the
Group’s synergy on improving integrated service capabilities. The
Group believed this approach would streamline the package tour
ground handling operation processes to enhance service quality
through closer monitoring and supervision, bring best value not
only to our valued customers, but also for serving long-term
interests of business strategy optimisation. The new operation
of the associate in Japan has officially commenced operation in
the second quarter of 2015, and that of Korea has commenced
operation in the third quarter of 2015. In the meantime, the
Group continued its expansion efforts with the establishment
of a representative office in the PRC for promoting business
and products development, which sets a major milestone for
the Group to expand its sales network and strengthen market
penetration into the PRC.

The Group sustained its strong momentum and recorded robust
growth in revenue of approximately HK$1,858.3 million for the
Year, representing 10.3% increase over 2014 of approximately
HK$1,685.2 million. Positive growth of 8.9%, 0.9% and 43.0%
were recorded respectively in revenue from package tours, from
FIT Products and from ancillary travel related products and
services. The contributions from various business segments for
the years indicated are set out as follows:

20155 % 2015 Annual Report 013
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IRATE Package tours

EHR{TEmR FIT Products

N IRITAAR Ancillary travel related
Em LR products and services

&% Total

EF Gross Profit

MRATE Package tours

BHRITEM FIT Products

SN IR T FE S Ancillary travel related
o KR products and services

&5t Total
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2014
BUEF
®E  BEPAE k&
Average
Number of  revenue per
Amount  customers customer
TET BT
HK$'000 HK$
1,524,714 190,263 8,014
75,421 155,483 485
85,110 @R N/A
1,685,245 345,746
2014
G EN =
Gross profit
Amount margin
FET
HK$'000 %
224,689 14.7
75,421 100.0
40,853 48.0
340,963 20.2
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Videa=l PACKAGE TOURS

RTERSETERREERITEEPKEIMESE - K&  Revenue from package tours mainly represents tour fees received

BXERARRAIRTE - R2015E FEIAEEIZ  from customers for outbound package tours. The main source

HEFERI89.4% (20144F : 90.5%) » NX&EFHINRFI/REE  of the Group’s revenue is derived from package tours, which

%7 B B 2D B k1T E R B A contributed 89.4% to the Group’s total revenue in 2015 (2014:
90.5%). The followings set forth the composition of revenue from
package tours by destinations for the years indicated:

2014
k-
Uk Revenue Amount
FET
HK$’000 %
=N Japan 839,020 55.0
BAASNGE M@ Asia ex-Japan 464,752 30.5
BN B2 Eo A Europe and others 220,942 14.5
&5t Total 1,524,714 100.0
2014
SR VRS
Gross profit
EF Gross Profit Amount margin
FET
HK$’000 %
=N Japan 155,117 18.5
BAASNGE M@ Asia ex-Japan 51,418 111
BN & B A Europe and others 18,154 8.2
= Total 224,689 14.7

2015% 3% 2015 Annual Report 015
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2014
BUEFP
A Tk e
Average
revenue per
Number customer
BIT
HK$
89,954 9,327
87,404 5,317
12,905 17,121
190,263 8,014

Package tours — Japan

Japan-bound package tours continued to be the main source of
the Group’s revenue. Depreciation in JPY against HKD stimulated
higher demand for Japan-bound package tours and lower relevant
costs of travel elements. More generous tax exemption offer to
travellers also encourages customers to travel to Japan. Gross
profit from Japan-bound package tours contributed 52.3% to the
Group’s total gross profit for the Year (2014: 45.5%), whilst gross
profit margin grew from 18.5% in 2014 to 20.9% in 2015.

Package tours — Asia ex-Jdapan

In 2015, there were a number of adverse events impacted on
the sale of package tours bound for Asia ex-Japan seriously.
Revenue from Asia ex-Japan package tours decreased by 32.8%
to approximately HK$312.2 million (2014: HK$464.8 million). In
general, sale of package tours bound for Asia ex-Japan region
was affected by weakening demand as a result of airlines’
intensive promotion and depreciation in JPY and Euro (“EUR”)
against HKD which lured some customers to Japan or other long-
haul destinations. Regional factors are elaborated as below for in-
depth analysis and discussion on their respective adverse impact
on revenue from Asia ex-Japan package tours.



RERITIRRFR SR ERRE - SRBRTENEE
EXRETE  BEFHE TR TI7.5%  MEKGEEAR
SEMBRTEEENERAB2014F8912.1% T #
ZF20155F/H16.1% o Ik EHRALR - BRTHRAEDR
MMt ENER MM ERBRERBEREHRS
foh - ENERMAR N ERN HERISE RS RAEMZE
ARIFREZER BN EMBREEE - HERALFF
MERTEEELERBEAEBEATE  TPYE TR
T37.3%  MEWEHAEENLIRTEHSHEEA
20144 #)5.2% T [& 220159 #)3.2% ° & & J5 | -
HEN2B i R R AR MBI T - TR ARBEA -
EHEE - ARMEARNEEHRENTS EEMIKTT
RIEFMETREITHMTERNES  BREFPHETH
T26.2%  MEWEHAEERNLIKRTEHESHEER
H20144E05.8% TR E20155EH3.8% & E B AR LASN
DM ERITEMNEBRETE  ERERTENHE
B 2014F BT E - BAE2014FE—FTEHERH
BHBEOIMNELER - MER2014F5AF2014F7A 5
FIAREAEMEEIINEET - ME20145F6AE - &
SEESHANRRKRITE - 20155F - AR KID B
MY AECINEETR  BERPERERESRED - &P
HEEMNT21.4%  MEREEHAEENRIRTEHEE
B BB 2014 M1.4% 2B INE20155H91.8% ° It
BRBERTE0IGFFHSAFBEE  ERMZER
ANEEHE - AEMBUT A TRESRFEE,TER
RRGENMRESREE - FTERRHIKTTEH kg
RIEBHOBERDAFE -

BEEME - ANFE A AN N R 5RTT B A EF &
RNEBMBENN TR B9.1% (20145F 1 15.1%) - BE
MEHRERERE  AEBNRANEFEGRBEIIE
FEFME - EFEH2014F B911.1% £ FF =2015F )
12.7% °

In Korea, Middle East respiratory syndrome outbreak caused
a severe blow to the sale of package tours bound for Korea,
number of customers dropped by 37.5% and revenue contributed
to the Group’s total tour sales dropped from 12.1% in 2014 to
6.1% in 2015. Besides, in Malaysia, in addition to the missing
Malaysia Airlines’ aircraft, plane crash of AirAsia Indonesia aircraft
and kidnapping of tourists, haze pollution from forest fires in
Indonesia and suspension of direct flight service by Malaysia
Airlines to Pulau Langkawi also brought considerable negative
influence on the sale of package tours bound for Malaysia and
Singapore, number of customers dropped by 37.3% and revenue
contributed to the Group’s total tour sales dropped from 5.2%
in 2014 to 3.2% in 2015. In addition, in Taiwan, due to outbreak
of H5N2 avian influenza and Norovirus, spread of Dengue fever,
earthquakes and typhoons accompanied by the competition from
airlines’ intensive promotion and price reduction by other travel
agencies in the market, number of customers dropped by 26.2%
and revenue contributed to the Group’s total tour sales dropped
from 5.8% in 2014 to 3.8% in 2015. Despite Asia ex-Japan
package tour sector got weaker performance, sale of package
tours bound for Thailand showed improvements as compared
to 2014. Hong Kong had issued black outbound travel alert for
Thailand in the first quarter of 2014 and adjusted to red and
amber outbound travel alert respectively in May 2014 and July
2014, the Group resumed package tours bound for Thailand since
June 2014. In 2015, as most of the time amber outbound travel
alert was issued, customers regain their confidence on travelling to
Thailand. Number of customers increased by 21.4% and revenue
contributed to the Group’s total tour sales only increased from 1.4%
in 2014 to 1.8% in 2015. It indicated that the pace of growth in
demand for package tours bound for Thailand remained sluggish
due to the Bangkok bomb explosion in mid-2015, together with
airlines’ intensive promotion and currency depreciation in JPY and
EUR against HKD attracted the customers to Japan or long-haul
destinations.

On the whole, gross profit for Asia ex-Japan package tours
contributed 9.1% to the Group’s total gross profit for the Year
(2014: 15.1%). The Group is committed to maintaining high
service quality and uplift gross profit margin. Notwithstanding the
shrinking demand in the market, gross profit margin grew from
11.1% in 2014 to 12.7% in 2015.
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Package tours — Europe and others

To mitigate the impact of political instability in North Africa on the
business growth of this segment in 2015 as foreseen at the end
of 2014, Australia, New Zealand and Europe became the Group’s
key focus amongst long-haul destinations. In addition to reserving
more airline seats in advance to cater for increasing demand,
the Group also adopted more aggressive pricing strategy by
closely monitoring the market reaction on price adjustment. In
addition, benefiting from depreciation in EUR against HKD and the
easing of political instability in Russia and Ukraine, demand for
package tours bound for Europe increased, where the number of
customers grew by 35.0% as compared to 2014 and gross profit
margin increased from 9.2% to 17.5%. Other than tours bound
for Europe, increasing demand was also observed for package
tours bound for Australia and New Zealand. With depreciation
in Australian dollar (“AUD”) against HKD and the availability of
direct flights to New Zealand, more customers are willing to pay
relatively higher tour fees to these destinations and the number
of customers grew by 26.8% as compared to 2014. Gross profit
margin in respect of the tours to Australia and New Zealand rose
from 5.3% to 10.3%.

FIT PRODUCTS

Revenue from FIT Products is recognised on a net basis as the
Group renders the services as an agent, responsible for arranging
the booking of air tickets and accommodations on behalf of
service suppliers. For the Year, FIT Products contributed 4.1% to
the Group’s total revenue (2014: 4.5%). The followings set forth
the composition of revenue from FIT Products by destinations for
the years indicated:

2015 2014

ox ] +58

Uk Z5 Revenue Amount Amount

T8t FHEIT
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
SN Japan 59,517 78.2 47,895 63.5
BARLASNE MR Asia ex-Japan 14,575 19.2 24,598 32.6
BN K E A Europe and others 1,996 2.6 2,928 3.9
&t Total 76,088 100.0 75,421 100.0

Kt BRTERKARAFRA - BIRAISRIBRAENRIEH
BHERAREERER ©
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Note: Revenue of FIT Products represents the net income, which is the
gross proceeds netted with the associated direct cost.
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Fr8skIEH %R Gross Proceeds
=N Japan
BARLASNEMHIE  Asia ex-Japan
BUM & E A Europe and others
&5t Total

Wi BRTERN KSR RRERAMSRALETES

9o
DN - Number of Customers
=N Japan
BARLASNEMHE  Asia ex-Japan

BOM B2 oA Europe and others

A
(5)

ok

Total

B/A77Em—H X
BEAEEBIRESHERLEA - BEZENR2015FM
ERAETEREAMERA LEEEIAENADSE
TEEFTAE RS BHETEEAIRE EKITE - BHA
NERTTERNEFAHE2014F T#12.9% © ERA
SE-BERMNERNEERRE HERENEEIORT
FEHEEARTRRTISS|ASHFHMNZ T BAREH
TEM - BARBHBITEMWERE20145F 8L HR12.8%
EINE16.2%  MBAXRBARITEMNELE P FHKE
BRIl 4960078 L& = 4985778 T

2014

- e &
Amount Yield

FHIT
HK$’000 %
374,566 12.8
253,023 9.7
49,544 5.9
677,133 111

Note: Yield of FIT Products represents the revenue margin calculated as
revenue divided by gross proceeds.

2014
HuRF
N Ty a5
Average
revenue per
Number customer
BT
HK$
79,781 600
68,323 360
7,379 397
155,483 485

FIT Products — Japan

Although depreciation in JPY against HKD led to higher demand,
facing the competition from airlines’ intensive promotion and
strong publicity efforts from online accommodation booking
websites in 2015, the number of accommodation bookings
suffered which led the total number of customers of Japan FIT
Products to drop by 12.9% as compared to 2014. As the Group
has all along adopted effective pricing strategy, stable source of
air tickets and accommodation supply and constant introduction
of new and diversified Japan FIT Products to the market, yield of
Japan FIT Products increased from 12.8% to 16.2% and average
revenue per customer for Japan FIT Products increased from
approximately HK$600 to HK$857 as compared to 2014.
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FIT Products — Asia ex-dapan

For Asia ex-Japan FIT Products, subject to restraint of similar
unfavourable market factors in Asia ex-Japan package tours as
discussed above, the travel interest to corresponding regions has
been negatively affected, revenue from FIT Products bound for
Korea, Malaysia and Taiwan recorded a decrease for the Year.
Number of customers for Asia ex-Japan FIT Products dropped
by 33.7%, yield of Asia ex-Jdapan FIT Products slightly decreased
from 9.7% to 9.6% and average revenue per customer for Asia
ex-Japan FIT Products decreased from approximately HK$360 to
HK$322 as compared to 2014.

FIT Products — Europe and others

Airlines’ intensive promotion attracted customers to purchase
tickets directly from airlines and terrorist attack in Paris and
Europe migrant crisis decreased the number of customers of
FIT Products bound for Europe and other destinations by 2.2%.
Revenue and gross proceeds dropped by 31.8% and 35.7%
respectively, average revenue per customer decreased from
approximately HK$397 to HK$276 as compared to 2014,

ANCILLARY TRAVEL RELATED PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES

Revenue from ancillary travel related products mainly represents
income from sale of public transportation tickets for use in Japan,
sale of theme park admission tickets and sale of souvenirs to
inbound tour customers. Revenue from ancillary travel related
services mainly represents commission income from travel
insurance services and handling fees for remittance services
provided to souvenir and merchandise suppliers in Japan.
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For the Year, ancillary travel related products and services
contributed 6.5% to the Group’s total revenue (2014: 5.0%).
Revenue from ancillary travel related products and services
increased by 43.0% to approximately HK$121.7 million (2014:
HK$85.1 million). The result was mainly contributed by the
increase in demand for related products and services along with
increase in number of customers travelling to Japan which was
led by depreciation in JPY against HKD. The increase in sale
of transportation tickets was mainly derived from sale of Japan
rail pass and newly introduced highway bus tickets and booking
of car rental services. The increase in sale of admission tickets
reflected the growth in ticket sales in tandem with new opening of
a theme site within an amusement theme park in Osaka in mid-
2014 and successful marketing strategy and mode of distribution.
The increase in receipt of handling fees for remittance services
was due to increase in demand for remittance services as the
number of customers of Japan-bound package tours increased.

B %% ol g2 FINANCIAL REVIEW
FEUBLE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
2015 2014
BEERIRE Return on total assets 24.1% 15.7%
RAEHEB AEGERERE Return on equity attributable to owners 41.9% 31.8%
of the Company
T EE Operating profit margin 9.5% 5.4%
e Net profit margin 8.1% 4.4%
TMENLE & Current ratio 2.31% 1.9
2.3 times 1.9 times
U e Gearing ratio = =z
Nil Nil
Woan R EF REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT
FLREXEBHE - BBAREREMNENMF  Please see the discussion on the Group’s revenue and gross
i o profit in the section headed “Business Overview” above.
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SELLING EXPENSES

The key elements of selling expenses of the Group included front
line employee costs, advertising and promotion expenses for
media advertising and promotional activities. Selling expenses
of the Group increased from approximately HK$91.4 million in
2014 to approximately HK$105.1 million in 2015, representing
14.9% increase as compared to 2014. The increase was mainly
attributed to the increase in advertising and promotion expenses
of approximately HK$6.8 million and increase in employee costs
of approximately HK$6.8 million as compared to 2014. Selling
expenses represented 5.7% of revenue in 2015 (2014: 5.4%).

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee costs, directors’ remuneration, bank charges and
rent and rates and management fees accounted for the
majority of administrative expenses, which represented 82.4%
of total administrative expenses (2014: 75.1%). The Group’s
administrative expenses decreased by 5.3%, from approximately
HK$165.1 million in 2014 to approximately HK$156.5 million in
2015. The decrease was primarily attributable to net effect of
the decrease in employee costs by approximately HK$2.0 million
and the decrease in legal and professional fees by approximately
HK$17.0 million due to the absence of listing expenses of
approximately HK$18.6 million, but offset by the increase in
directors’ remuneration by approximately HK$2.4 million, the
increase in bank charges by approximately HK$1.2 million, the
increase in rent and rates and management fees by approximately
HK$2.9 million resulted from rental increase. The decrease in
employee costs was mainly due to the reversal of provision for
staff long service payments of approximately HK$5.3 million as
the Group has extended the retirement age of staff by five years
in 2015.

FINANCE COST

The Group did not incur finance cost for the Year as the Group
did not have any loans, borrowings or balances due to related
companies or financial institutions (2014: Nil).
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OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN AND NET PROFIT
MARGIN

Operating profit margin of the Group increased from 5.4% in
2014 to 9.5% in 2015, and net profit margin increased from
4.4% to 8.1% (profit in calculation refers to the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company). The improved profit
margins were mainly due to a higher demand for Japan-bound
package tours, lower costs of travel elements in Japan driven by
the depreciation in JPY against HKD, and the absence of listing
expenses of approximately HK$18.6 million as recorded in 2014.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s current ratio was 2.3 times
(as at 31 December 2014: 1.9 times). The increase in current
ratio was mainly attributable to the increase in cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$128.8 million.

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio was nil as the Group did not have any
loans or borrowings as at the respective year ends.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing
loans with the total assets as at the respective year ends.

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS AND RETURN ON EQUITY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Return on total assets and return on equity attributable to owners
of the Company were 24.1% (2014: 15.7%) and 41.9% (2014
31.8%) respectively. The increase in return on total assets and
return on equity attributable to owners of the Company was
mainly due to the increase in profit attributable to owners of the
Company by 102.0% as compared to 2014.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group finances its operation with its own capital, with the
total equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31
December 2015 amounted to approximately HK$359.2 million
(as at 31 December 2014: HK$234.0 million). With solid liquidity
position maintained by the Group, no loans or borrowings
were drawn by the Group in 2015. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group’s net cash and cash equivalents balance amounted
to approximately HK$453.1 million (as at 31 December 2014:
HK$324.4 million). Cash and cash equivalents were mainly
denominated in HKD accounting for approximately 72.0% (2014:
71.1%) with Macau Pataca accounting for approximately 14.7%
(2014: 5.2%), Renminbi accounting for approximately 4.3% (2014:
6.3%) and JPY accounting for approximately 3.3% (2014: 11.1%).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had pledged bank deposits
of approximately HK$22.0 million (as at 31 December 2014:
HK$22.0 million) to certain licensed banks in Hong Kong and
Macau to secure letters of guarantee issued to certain third
parties on behalf of the Group. Total guarantees amounted
to approximately HK$18.5 million (as at 31 December 2014:
HK$16.9 million), which were mainly issued to the Group’s
suppliers, such as airlines and hotels, to guarantee its trade
payable balances due to them. Save as disclosed above, the
Group had no other pledge of assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND FUTURE CAPITAL
EXPENDITURES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$5.3 million (as at 31 December 2014: HK$0.3
million), to acquire property, plant and equipment for the Group.
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Future capital expenditures as stated in the section headed
“Use of proceeds from the IPO” of this annual report, such as
refurbishment and face lifting of existing branches, development of
a comprehensive online web portal, and improving management
information system by implementing enterprise resources planning
system, will be financed by proceeds from the IPO as intended.
For future capital expenditures other than the above-mentioned,
the Group currently intends to finance by internal resources. In
addition, since the feasibility study of hotel investment project is in
progress, relevant future capital expenditures cannot be estimated
reliably at this stage. Notwithstanding, the Group intends to
finance the project by sources other than the proceeds from the
IPO and does not presently intend to raise additional fund for the
starting up of the Group’s hotel business.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) considered that there
were no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Foreign currency exchange risk exposure is encountered by the
Group to the extent that receipt from customers and payments
to suppliers may not be reconciled, subject to prevailing foreign
currency fluctuations. Instead of relying on hedging arrangements,
the Group had implemented foreign exchange risk management
procedures to closely monitor the risk exposure. The procedures
were established to prevent carrying excessive cash balance in
foreign currencies, of which the purchase amounts were limited
to the corresponding costs of travel elements based on estimated
sales amount for a defined period (one week for JPY and two
weeks for other foreign currencies), to cover the foreign exchange
risk exposure in connection. The objective of our foreign exchange
risk management procedures is to cover the foreign exchange
risk exposure in connection with those costs of travel elements
denominated in foreign currencies to be incurred for a defined
period of not more than two weeks. The procedures do not allow
us to exercise any judgement over the future direction of foreign
exchange fluctuation. They are strict procedural steps for our
operational staff to follow.
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Other than the transactional foreign currency exchange risk,
assets and liabilities of the group entities are mainly denominated
in its respective functional currency. The Group’s treasury
management policy is to place surplus cash into bank deposits
with licensed banks in mainly Hong Kong, Macau and Japan.
Also, working capital are centrally managed to ensure proper and
efficient collection and deployment of funds, and sufficient funds
to settle liabilities when they fall due. During 2015, exchange loss
from translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group
entities was approximately HK$4.8 million (2014: HK$5.8 million),
whilst transactional gain arising from the difference of exchange
rates between recording and settlement of the expenses was
approximately HK$0.6 million (2014: HK$2.3 million), resulting in
net foreign exchange loss of approximately HK$4.2 million (2014:
HK$3.5 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEE'’S
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total workforce of
693 employees (as at 31 December 2014: 677), of which 221
(as at 31 December 2014: 217) were full-time tour escorts.
Employees’ remuneration and benefits in kind, contributions to
retirement schemes, including that of the Directors, for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$154.3 million (2014: HK$147.1
million), and the increase was mainly contributed by approximately
HK$4.8 million net increase in employee costs due to about
5.5% pay rise during 2015 and increase in staff number offset
by the reversal of provision for staff long service payments, and
approximately HK$2.4 million increase in directors’ remuneration
due to the compensation in respect of better group performance.
Employees’ remuneration packages are determined with reference
to the market information and individual performance and will
be reviewed on a regular basis. The remuneration policy will
be reviewed by the Board from time to time. Emoluments of
Directors are determined by the remuneration committee of the
Board after considering the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparing with market conditions. In addition to
basic remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance,
provident funds and other benefits in kind to the employees.
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To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of employee training programmes, which aims
to accelerate professional growth and identify competencies and
talents of diversified teams. Through operating talent development
scheme, the Group has successfully extended the recruitment
channels and enhanced the opportunities on the hiring of high
quality and suitable staff. High potential staff will be groomed and
developed intensively according to the promotion plan towards
the management level. To attract and retain the suitable personnel
for the development of the Group, the Group has conditionally
adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) since
November 2014. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, share
options may be granted to eligible employees of the Group as a
long-term incentive. No share options were granted, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised up to the end of the current year. In 2015,
there was no significant change in the remuneration policies,
bonus, Share Option Scheme and training scheme of the Group,
except that the retirement age has been extended by five years.

OUTLOOK

In order to deliver strong results while providing high-quality
products and services, building on the Group’s reputable brand
and solid experience in the travel industry, the Group will continue
to use its full potential to expand its business worldwide to face
challenges from fast-paced and ever-changing market conditions
and operating environment.

To strengthen the Group’s core business development, the
Group further extends its quality and cost control on package
tour ground handling operation in Taiwan. A travel agency
company, Hit Travel Service Co. Ltd was set up in Taiwan which
mainly handles the inbound travel operations for package tours
from the Group. It has started its operation in the first quarter
of 2016. The Group held 62.0% shareholding with investment
amount of approximately HK$2.9 million. Furthermore, a tourist
transportation company, Kabushiki Kaisha ZIPANG. S. S, was set
up in Osaka, Japan which will mainly provide travel bus services
to the package tours from the Group. It will start its operation in
the second quarter of 2016. The Group held 80.0% shareholding
with investment amount of approximately HK$0.5 million.
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Focusing on customers’ needs and pursuing provision of
comprehensive wedding services to target customers, the Group
held the grand opening of its overseas wedding specialty shop
in Central district in February 2016, which marked the Group’s
focal point on business development which brings liaison with the
Group’s business function for effective integration and extension
of existing business.

Seizing the development opportunity arising from increasing
demand for hotel rooms in Osaka, the Group is in the progress
of proactively exploring and identifying a hotel with about 300
rooms located in prime district of Osaka for acquisition. The
feasibility study is well under way, the Company will, as and when
necessary, make further announcement in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The Company reiterates that the aforesaid hotel
development project will be financed by sources other than the
proceeds from the IPO, and does not presently intend to raise
additional fund for the starting up of the Group’s hotel business.

In 2016, the tourism industry may be adversely affected by the
mixed uncertainties of Hong Kong and global economy and
possible appreciation in JPY against HKD, the Group will continue
to use net proceeds from the IPO effectively according to its
long-term plan as listed in the prospectus of the Company dated
18 November 2014 (“Prospectus”), together with the Group’s
dedicated professional team and management, supportive
customers, business partners and stakeholders, the Group is
confident in continuing success of the Group in the years ahead.
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Five Year Financial Summary

BZE12A31BLLEE
For the year ended 31 December

2014 2013 2012 2011
FHT FHET FHET FHET
E45 Results HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wz Revenue
IRITE Package tours 1,524,714 1,498,836 1,252,821 1,154,513
BH{TEmM FIT Products 75,421 75,725 56,701 44,728
5B 4 TR TT A Ancillary travel related products
Em R RS and services 85,110 72,612 55,083 47,448
1,685,245 1,647,173 1,364,605 1,246,689
EF Gross profit
IRITE Package tours 224,689 240,604 143,480 126,534
B HR{TE MR FIT Products 75,421 75,725 56,701 44,728
BN 4 IRTT AR Ancillary travel related products
Em R R% and services 40,853 36,826 27,727 24,743
340,963 353,155 227,908 196,005
Hip g A R dezs Other income and
(E518) 3% gain/(loss), net 6,274 (2,605) 4,446 8,946
TESBMTA Net realised and unrealised
BEE N RSN (loss)/gain on derivative
(B518), W F58 financial instruments (485) 2,146 9) -
B FT 1S E A A Profit before income tax 90,175 121,097 45,981 18,057
SR Income tax expense (15,668)  (18,309) (4,943) (3,063)
FERF Profit for the year 74,507 102,788 41,038 14,994
IR S PRGBS 18 Loss attributable to
non-controlling interests - - - -
RAEHER NG ST Profit attributable to
owners of the Company 74,507 102,788 41,038 14,994
BRRERMOEBE Per share data
BRAF Earnings per share
— EAR R HEEE (B> — Basic and diluted (HK cents)* 18.20 25.70 10.26 3.75
Bi S =& Financial ratios
FH = Gross profit margin 20.2% 21.4% 16.7% 15.7%
R Zx Net profit margin* 4.4% 6.2% 3.0% 1.2%
488 FE o] 3R R~ Return on total assets* 15.7% 21.0% 11.9% 4.5%
T %5 [0 7 2k > Return on equity* 31.8% 46.2% 25.0% 12.2%
[EY IR Gearing ratio Z Nil Z Nil = Nil Z Nil

* OEMREE EREARA RS ARG SR

*

Profit in calculation refers to profit attributable to owners of the

Company
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M12A31H
As at 31 December
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
FET FAT FAT FAT FHET
EERGARE Assets and Liabilities HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
WEE Total assets 624,114 474,570 490,057 344,992 330,503
BEE Total liabilities (268,041) (240,571) (267,594) (180,564) (207,113)
361,073 233,999 222,463 164,428 123,390
FEZHATR Total equity
ZN/NCIE S DN Equity attributable to 359,209 233,999 222,463 164,428 123,390
JEfG M2 owners of the Company
eI Non-controlling interests 1,864 - - - -
361,073 233,999 222,463 164,428 123,390
BieEt1 . RSABRBEMNEZE201146F « 2012 20134512 Note 7: The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the years
ABMALFENFEEUAREERBERE NIRE M ended 31 December 2011, 2012 and 2013 which were extracted
HEERR - UBRASEREE  BOEBEBRAR from the Prospectus have been prepared on a combined basis
AROEBZAMER LETRERZEFE—ERFT - to indicate the results of the Group as if the group structure, at
the time when the Company’s shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, has been in existence throughout
those years.
Wego: BEEDEIRNMRNM SRS FS5.0811(2014 1 Note 2: The Board has declared and paid interim dividend of HK5.0
L) c BEECEZEE2015F12A31 B L FE AR cents per share (2014: Nil). Final dividend of HK10.0 cents per
B AER10.05811(2014 : &) - 2ERHAKREA share (2014: Nil) in respect of the year ended 31 December
FARFRRNEERREBFAG LIEFAIEE - 2015 was proposed by the Board, the proposed final dividend
is subject to the approval by the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
HtaE3 : FEZEM WX 4918,600,000/8 7T © A E2014  Note 3: Non-recurring listing expenses of approximately HK$18.6 million
F12A31 B IEFEARRREE ABEEF A - were deducted from the profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.
030 RRFEEZERAERAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 (“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$101.4 million (2014: Nil).

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2015 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 73 to 148 of this annual report.
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The Directors have declared and paid the interim dividends of
HK5.0 cents (2014: Nil) per share totalling HK$25,122,500 (2014:
Nil) during the Year.

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK10.0 cents per
share payable on 27 June 2016 to shareholders whose names
are on the register of members on 3 June 2016. There was no
arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under which
he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion of the Group’s future business development are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement and the paragraphs headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 10 and on
pages 12 to 28 of this annual report respectively.

Certain principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group may
affect its business, operating results and financial conditions,
including:

(i) OCCURRENCE OF NATURAL DISASTERS,
ACTS OR THREATS OF TERRORISM, WARS,
TRAVEL RELATED ACCIDENTS, OUTBREAK
OF CONTAGIOUS DISEASES OR OTHER
CATASTROPHIC EVENTS

The demand for the Group’s travel products and services
may be materially and adversely affected by natural
disasters, acts or threats of terrorism, wars, travel related
accidents, outbreak of contagious diseases or other
catastrophic events. They may significantly and adversely
affect customer sentiments and demand for travel products
and services to the affected destinations or for travel
activities in general. The occurrence and timing of such

20155 % 2015 Annual Report 033
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events cannot be predicted or controlled by the Group and
may have significant and adverse impact on our business
operations and operating results, particularly if the Group
is, or is perceived to be, not reacting appropriately in the
wake of any such event.

(i)  CHANGE IN ECONOMIC CONDITIONS OF MAJOR
MARKETS

The Group’s business is based in Hong Kong and Macau
and its revenue is mainly derived from the sale of travel
products and services in Hong Kong and Macau. Any
economic downturn or recession in Hong Kong and
Macau could lead to decline in demand for our products
or services and our overall business and operating results
may be materially and adversely affected.

CHANGE IN ECONOMIC, POLITICAL AND SOCIAL
CONDITIONS RELATED TO JAPAN

The business and operating results of the Group might be
adversely affected if there is any material adverse change
in the economic, social or political situations relating to
Japan, including its foreign relationship with other Asian
countries, or if there is any serious natural disasters or
disastrous accidents occurring in Japan, which may
adversely impact customer demand for travel products and
services of the Group related to Japan.

(ifi)

Further description of possible financial risks and capital
risks facing the Group are set out in note 36 and note
35 to the consolidated financial statements and the
paragraphs headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Foreign Currency Exchange Risk and Treasury Policies”
on pages 25 to 26 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five
Year Financial Summary and the paragraphs headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review” on pages 29 to
31 and on pages 21 to 27 of this annual report respectively.
Particulars of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31 December
2015, if any, can also be found in the above sections of this
annual report and notes to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and has implemented certain policies to minimise the
impact on the environment from its business activities. The Group
has implemented internal recycling program on a continuous basis
for consumables such as toner, cartridges and paper to minimise
the operation impact on the environment and natural resources.
Recycled papers have also been used as printing materials. The
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Group also implemented energy saving practices in offices and
branch premises where applicable. The Group also plans to
complete the upgrade of air-conditioning and electricity systems
to achieve the energy saving to workplace where possible. During
the Year, the Board is of the opinion that the Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in all material respects.

The Group endeavours to refine the approach to addressing
its environmental, social and ethical responsibilities along with
improving our corporate governance and should generate greater
value for all of our stakeholders including our shareholders,
employees, customers, and suppliers as well as the communities.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Company provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to our staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and self-
fulfillment in their positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products which satisfy the
needs and requirements of the customers. The Group enhances
the relationship by continuous interaction with customers to gain
insight on the changing market demand for different products
so that the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also
established procedures in handling customers’ feedbacks and
complaints to ensure customers’ opinions are dealt with in a
prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains sound business relationship with its suppliers
and service providers, including ground handling operators,
airlines and hotel operators, globally. In order to have a better
and close monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s
management conducts performance review regularly targeting the
Group’s major suppliers and service providers, and communicates
with them for rectification and improvements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years are set out on pages 29 to 31 of
this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$2.6 million (2014: HK$1.5 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount
of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represent less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

IEAREE
BERBEEI
Percentage of
the Group’s Total

Purchases
BAHER The largest supplier 16.1%
SRR G Five largest suppliers in aggregate 35.0%
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As at 31 December 2015, Mr Huen Kwok Chuen had an interest
of less than 0.001% in one of the Group’s five largest suppliers
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, no Director, their close associates or
any shareholder who to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital have any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Any further Directors
to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since
their last election or appointment but as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves)
be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun and
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on 27 May 2016 (“2016 AGM”)
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set out on
pages 67 to 70 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the
relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former
Directors) of the Company. The permitted indemnity provisions are
provided for in the Articles and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against such Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of any business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the Year, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreement.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2016 AGM has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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Name of Associated

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the directors and chief executive of the
Company were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be recorded in the register therein, or were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code (“Model Code”) for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules were as
follows:

INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION OF THE COMPANY

FEREEE YLy el £
EmtE BHEE BABEDE

Total Number of
Shares Held in
the Associated

Approximate %
of Interest in the
Associated

Name of Directors

Corporation

Nature of Interest

Corporation

Corporation

RXHREA(FE - 1T
B%)

Mr. Yuen Man Ying
(Chairman, Executive
Director)

BE2EEMITES)

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen
(Executive Director)

et (BMITES)
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu
(Executive Director)

FEZLT(MITES)
Ms. Lee Po Fun
(Executive Director)

REEREEEFR AR
(MREER])

Evergloss Management
Group Company
Limited (“Evergloss”)

rEReE

Evergloss

rEReE 12

Evergloss

R EE
Evergloss

B BEFERBIA (A1)

Founder of a discretionary
trust (Note 1)

PTG EB AR
(Hfez2)

Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 2)

EmEA A

Beneficial owner

Bat1%3
Notes 1 & 3

8,850 (L)

7,650 (L)

3,300 (L)

9,150 (L)

26.70

23.08

9.95

27.60

L e

(L) Long position
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Notes:

1. The 8,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang Limited (“Likang”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is the trustee
of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is a discretionary trust set
up by Mr. Yuen Man Ying whose discretionary objects are Ms. Lee
Po Fun and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen Man
Ying respectively and both an associate of Mr. Yuen Man Ying.

2. The 7,650 shares in Evergloss were held by Kwok Lai Holdings
Limited (“Kwok Lai”), which is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen.

3. Out of the 9,150 shares in Evergloss, 8,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is the
trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Lee Po Fun is one of
the beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 300 shares in Evergloss
were held by Ms. Lee Po Fun as the beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or which had been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Name of Shareholders

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the persons (other than the Directors)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions

of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

EEME

Nature of Interest

FAEROABH

Total Number
of Shares Held

HEBITRA
BROBEDE
Approximate
Percentage of
the Issued
Share Capital

1R E IR
Evergloss

Fiducia Suisse SA

HILL David Henry Christopher

HILL Rebecca Ann

BEESEHENA

Value Partners Limited

HEEEFRAA
Value Partners Group Limited

SR EREES
Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund

EnEEA
Beneficial owner capacity

BtaE1
Note 1

Kizt2
Note 2

BtaE3
Note 3

EnEEA
Beneficial owner capacity

Btat4
Note 4

EnBAA
Beneficial owner capacity

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

31,258,000 (L)

31,258,000 (L)

30,168,000 (L)

74.63

74.63

74.63

74.63

6.22

6.22

6.00

L e

(L) Long position
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Notes:

1. 375,000,000 shares were held by Evergloss. Evergloss was owned
as to approximately 26.70% by Likang and 26.24% by Yohki
Ryokoh Limited (“Yohki”). Both Likang and Yohki are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Fiducia Suisse SA, which is the trustee of two
discretionary family trusts, namely () The Yuen Family 2014 Trust,
which is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman,
Executive Director, “Mr. Yuen”) whose discretionary objects are Ms.
Lee Po Fun (an Executive Director) and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and
daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an associate of Mr.
Yuen; (i) Happyyau Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust set
up by Mr. Yau Shui Fung whose discretionary objects are Ms. Li Siu
King, wife and an associate of Mr. Yau Shui Fung, and Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals.

2. Fiducia Suisse SA was held by Mr. HILL David Henry Christopher
who has a deemed interest of 375,000,000 shares in the Company.

3. Ms. HILL Rebecca Ann is a spouse of Mr. HILL David Henry
Christopher who has a deemed interest of 375,000,000 shares in
the Company.

4. 31,258,000 shares were beneficially owned by Value Partners
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Value Partners Group
Limited who has a deemed interest of such shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no other
substantial shareholder or person had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
disclosed below, none of the Company, any of its holding
company, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party to
any arrangements which would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year. Save as disclosed in this
annual report, none of the Directors or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 was granted any right to subscribe
for the shares or debentures of the Company or its subsidiaries or
had exercised any such right during the Year.



g
ki
)
St
44
M
S
N‘
e

b3

R20165F12A318  EEHTMERERRERBLZ
ETMBEAZTAXEBIRaE AEEEBERBTF X
AIREER BT R FALTEAREFERAEFEE
I E A F e Er 2R -

i B BUR
EEREARBER KRR - Al BARTERES
EEHER -

FHZEERESFMELRER  EEFHAEFEL
ZRAKELERE  MARARETRLEIRRE
ARBCRMBRIETE  (FREERER ZER -

BIAFTE

AEBRRE B Z FIFHN AR M HRKM 29 ©

NRBERERE

REARBAERZ ARERERESEAAE - BEAR
FHRAY - ARAFENE LMRAFTBIPRARE R
BITIRA25% 2 RRFFRE -

%8 3L 14 HERR

ARREEBERBIIFNTESRIE EMRRIZEI.131%
FREUB S P E h 2 FIRHER K - WRAMEBILIEH
TEFHERIAL -

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors were not aware of
any business or interest of the Directors and their respective
close associates that had competed or might compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interests which
any such person had or might have with the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature.

The remuneration of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparing with market conditions. The Company has
adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to eligible
employees.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme of the Group are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital is held by the public under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO after deducting underwriting
commissions and related expenses were approximately HK$115.8
million. The following table sets forth the status of the use of
proceeds from the IPO as at 31 December 2015:

Z2015%F Z2015%F
12A31H 12A31H
EEARE RBARE
Utilised up to Unutilised up to
FSFIERE Use of Proceeds 31 December 2015 31 December 2015
TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
() ERHEERE () Enhancing sales channel
— B REBREHTT - Refurbishment and face lifting of existing
branches 4,443 18,757
- RE—(E2EMFE - Development of a comprehensive online web
portal 4,144 13,256
(i) BBLEEHRAREFEZLIEE (i) Promoting brand image and recognition through
market initiatives
- REEINEREERBNEHEE - Conducting marketing initiatives with focus on
E) conventional media channels 9,300 -
- HERCEMRIEFABEREAH — Employing featured products or signature
REEIKESHEE tours marketing campaigns with suitable
spokespersons 392 7,708
— {E L SR B — Launching reward and incentive scheme - 11,500
(iii) fnod & B AR (i) Strengthening operational infrastructure
- BRETCEBRAIEZANEE - Improving management information system by
BEMZES implementing enterprise resources planning
system 6,028 7,872
— BRE T M IR B et 2Bk - Arranging charter flights to destination not
B served by scheduled flights 11,400 -
— R RBELREENES - Attracting and recruiting experienced employees 501 5,299
(iv) ZRBINGIEIRTT (iv) Developing overseas wedding tours 2,529 3,171
) FRIEREESREM—ARMAE (v For working capital and other general corporate
purposes 6,077 3,423
44,814 70,986

044 RBBEEZERBRAF
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As at 31 December 2015, the unutilised net proceeds from
the IPO were deposited in interest-bearing bank accounts with
licensed banks in Hong Kong.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders on 13 November 2014 which shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of listing of the
shares of the Company (i.e. 28 November 2014), subject to
early termination by the Company in a general meeting or by the
Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives to Eligible Person (as defined below) and is established
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions the Eligible
Person have had or may have made to the Group. Under the
Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant an option to
any employee, or any secondee, consultant, agent, representative,
adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or any affiliates; or
any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier of
goods or services to the Group or any affiliates or any employee
thereof (“Eligible Person”).

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of shares available for issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue immediately following completion of the IPO (but
taking no account of any shares which may be allotted or issued
pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option (as defined
in the Prospectus), being 50,000,000 shares. The total number
of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to
each Eligible Person in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the number of shares in issue as at the date of grant unless
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

20155 % 2015 Annual Report 045



&353R 4% GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB RBERT 8RB E B 2 I REEA
MEFEGET  BTBIRTIERSE  (INREBEH
(BEHARERH)  BXAATRABEIIRM®RZ BN K
mE: (IZREREBHIAESEBANBIMEARE
FIRFTHR 2 Bty P + Ry 2 HE1E -

RERBIAER - ARABRARRBRZNBTIERE
BB 2 (8 - B ] IR B R AT 81 2 IR BB AX
BRAEREWERNE BREZ AR+ FEMATH
B TTE - BREZTTENHESS2RPBET -
HENGHBBRERTF -

MN20155E1 A1 8 k20155128318 » XA R ERE
R RTEIR H EARAE - BT RS AR IR I N 5T
B - 1T - aEEEkRRK -

BEARFRAY - RIFBIE SR BT 2D B
/350,000,0000% AR B2 BT A4KI9.95% °

046 FmBERABMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board provided that it shall not be less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (jii) the nominal value of a share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015. No share
option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under
the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
50,000,000 shares representing approximately 9.95% of the
issued share capital of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions subject to
annual reporting and annual review requirements

Continuing connected transactions (“CCT”) (including Silver
Fortune Plaza 2101-2 Lease Agreement, Silver Fortune Plaza
2101-3 Lease Agreement, EGL Tower Lease Agreement, EGL
Tower 10B Lease Agreement, EGL Tower 16A Lease Agreement,
Chevalier House Lease Agreement and China Plaza Lease
Agreements, all of which were defined below) have been entered
into and/or subsisted (collectively, “Transactions”) between the
Group and Great Port Limited (“Great Port”) (Note 1) during the
Year. As disclosed in the Prospectus and the announcements
of the Company dated 20 July 2015 and 20 November 2015
(collectively, “CCT Announcements”), the aggregate annual cap
of these Transactions for the Year (as revised) (“Annual Cap”)
is HK$15,600,000. As the highest applicable percentage ratios
under the Listing Rules in respect of the Annual Cap exceeded 0.1%
but were less than 5%, the Transactions and the Annual Cap are
therefore exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements but are still subject to the annual reporting and
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules. Please refer
to the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in the
Prospectus and the CCT Announcements for further details.

Set out below are the details of the CCT which are required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing
Rules. The consideration for 2015 represents the value of the
relevant CCT for the full 12 months of 2015.
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Name, Date and Current Term
of the Agreement and Rental

AEBASH
Transaction Party
within the Group

AHHE  HERRSHR
Counter Party, Nature and
Description of the Transaction

Transaction Purpose

EEER
Basis for Determining the
Consideration

201558%
(%)
Consideration
for 2015 (HKS)

048

BEREN015E11 F0R%
S(THRES2101-2ERE])

LB - 2016E1 f1AZE
20176108318

AR 76,5007

Lease agreement signed on
20 November 2015 (*Silver

Fortune Plaza 2101-2 Lease
Agreement”)

Term: From 1 January 2016 to
31 October 2017

Monthly rental: HK$76,500

B ER#R2015%7 A20H
E(BBER2015F118208
AT L) (R A
FES2101-3 )

LB - 201588 1A F
20156115208

AT 108,000 (201558
1HZ201548F31 B AR

Two lease agreements signed
on 20 July 2015 (as terminated
by the termination agreement
signed on 20 November 2015)
(collectively “Silver Fortune
Plaza 2101-3 Lease
Agreement”)

Term: From 1 August 2015 to
20 November 2015

Monthly rental: HK$108,000
(with rent free period from 1
August 2015 to 31 August
2019)

RBEZERARAT

REBRIHARLA
([REE)) ARAZ
RE2ENELT

EGL Tours Company
Limited (“EGL Tours”),
an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of
the Company

REE - ARAZME
2EMELE

EGL Tours, an
indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the
Company

MEBAETRTREE

BATREERSISHEESE
A01-2EREEERN 609FHE
RuE

Property leased by Great Port to
EGL Tours

The premises of a total gross floor
area of approximately 1,699 s.ft.
located at Units 2101-2, 21st
floor, Silver Fortune Plaza, No. 1
Wellington Street, Central, Hong
Kong

MERABTETREE

EARRREBERHAESR (!
BAVNZRERRRM 04675
EROME © R(ij21182102-354
EE@EN TR ERRNE

Property leased by Great Port to
EGL Tours

(i) the premises of a total gross
floor area of approximately 1,046
sq.ft. located at Unit 2101, 21st
floor; and (ii) the premises of a total
gross floor area of approximately
1,347 sq.ft. located at Units 2102-
3, 21st floor, Silver Fortune Plaza,
No. 1 Wellington Street, Central,
Hong Kong

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

NHERED TSR

For using as a branch

NHEREDTRER

For using as a branch

RENEEHNFHERET &
BHEEATAE ffa-—REZ
ft - BROTERERTENR
B -

The rental was determined based
on arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and is fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial
terms and comparable to and are
on terms no less favorable than the
prevailing market rate.

RENEEHNFHERET &
SERFNBEUNXLERERD
EBHSBATAR A —KE
265 ERTHEREETER
BmEAE -

The rental was determined based
on arm's length negotiations
between the parties and is fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial
terms and comparable to and are
on terms no less favorable than the
prevaling market rate as confirmed
by an independent property valuer
engaged by the Group.

Nil

284,400

284,400



SR AER 01558
R BESHERRES rEERSF ANNT  HERRSER pUEL] EEER (B1)
Name, Date and Current Term  Transaction Party Counter Party, Nature and Basis for Determining the Consideration
No.  of the Agreement and Rental  within the Group Description of the Transaction Transaction Purpose  Consideration for 2015 (HKS)
3 EERER0UFNAIBER  REE ARAZEE NEAAETETREE WRERfELES B8 BENEEFATHELER & 10,399,248
T(REERAEERE]) 2ENBAR URARAENMERS SEEZNBUNERERED -
BENERBESSRRFERS B3 FEHeBATSR Ho—H#E
ROHR : 2014511 51BE (1OBARCEMR12E - 15816 63 BRATEREATER
2017F10A318 B2E(I6RAZRINEEEEEY RITH BB «
44616 HERMME : (i)21815
AR 18223 EEMANE + Rlii)ME
866,604/ 7T e
3 Lease agreement signed on 13 EGL Tours, an Property leased by Great Portto  For using as its The rental was determined based 10,399,248
November 2014 (‘EGL Tower  indirect wholly-owned  EGL Tours head office, car park  on arm’s length negotiations
Lease Agreement”) subsidiary of the spaces and for rental  between the parties and is fair and
Company (i) the premises of a total gross of signage at external  reasonable, on normal commercial
Term: From 1 November 2014 floor area of approximately 44,616 wall for advertising terms and comparable to and are
to 31 October 2017 sq.ft. located at Units AGC on on terms no less favorable than the
10/F, whole floors of 12/F, 15/ prevaiing market rate as confirmed
Monthly rental: HK$866,604 F & 16/F (except Unit A, 16/F), by an independent property valuer
(i) the premises located at car engaged by the Group.
park nos. P15, P18 to P23 on 2/
F, and (iii) signage at external wall
of EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
4 BEGER0UENAIBAE  REE ARABE NFEAETRTREE INEERfEES BeNEERNTHEEEE & 524,400
J(REERSIBEEDZ]) 2ENBAA SERZNEUNRLENRS
BANEBEES R RRERS10 FERSBATAR Ba—HE
HROER : 2014511A18Z EBZEEEERELN2300T AR R0 EROTERE ATER
2017104318 GBS RATHEHES -
AR - 43,7007
4 Lease agreement signed on 13 EGL Tours, an Property leased by Great Portto  For using as its head  The rental was determined based 524,400
November 2014 (‘EGL Tower  indirect wholly-owned  EGL Tours office on arm'’s length negotiations
10B Lease Agreement”) subsidiary of the between the parties and is fair and
Company The premises of a total gross reasonable, on normal commercial
Term: From 1 November 2014 floor area of approximately 2,300 terms and comparable to and are
to 31 October 2017 sq.ft. located at Unit B, 10/F, on terms no less favorable than the
EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, prevaiing market rate as confirmed
Monthly rental: HK$43,700 Kowloon, Hong Kong by an independent property valuer
engaged by the Group.
20155 % 2015 Annual Report 049
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BF RELNERRAS rEERZA AHHE  HERRSHR RAEM EEER (B71)
Name, Date and Current Term  Transaction Party Counter Party, Nature and Basis for Determining the Consideration
No.  of the Agreement and Rental  within the Group Description of the Transaction Transaction Purpose ~ Consideration for 2015 (HKS)
5  HEREN0UFNALBER  BRKTHARLE  WRAAETETRERTH MEEFfERE HENEETATHERET & 273,600
AJ(ERERIoAEERE])  (DBRKML]) A0 SERZNEUNFLAEMET
A AR EMBLR BANEREESTRRERS6 FEMEBLATEE He-HAE
ROHR : 014F11B1RE BAZEREEEM 2007 HER SR ERATEREATER
2017F10A31H BmE BB -
A 22,800
5 Lease agreement signed on 13 i-Evertravel Company  Property leased by Great Portto ~ For using as its head  The rental was determined based 273,600
November 2014 (‘EGL Tower  Limited ("i-Evertravel’),  i-Evertravel office on am's length negotiations
16A Lease Agreement”) an indirect wholly- hetween the parties and is fair and
owned subsidiary of ~ The premises of a total gross reasonable, on normal commercial
Term: From 1 November 2014 the Company floor area of approximately 1,200 terms and comparable to and are
to 31 October 2017 sq.ft. located at Unit A, 16/F, on terms no less favorable than the
EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, prevailing market rate as confirmed
Monthly rental: HK$22,800 Kowloon, Hong Kong by an independent property valuer
engaged by the Group.
6  BEBEN04F1ABRE  REE ARECEE DEBAENRTREE WHEREREREY BEDEEHATRARKEE & 1,909,800
ST REREHE]) E3-iE N o =13 SERFNBUNFAENER
BENERAERGSIRATAR EENEBATEE HE-RE
OB : 20145115182 5812345 6EREEE $h3 - ERAMEREATER
20175108318 1846,366 T HER BV % BB -
Rl 159,150/
6 Lease agreement signed on EGL Tours, an Property leased by Great Portto  For using as a tea The rental was determined based 1,909,800

050

13 November 2014 (“Chevalier
House Lease Agreement”)

Term: From 1 November 2014
to 31 October 2017

Monthly rental: HK$159,150

RBEZERARAT

indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the
Company

EGL Tours

The premises of a total gross floor
area of approximately 6,366 sa.ft.
located at Units Nos. 1,2, 3, 4, 5,
6, 5/F of Chevalier House, 45-51
Chatham Road South, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

party room and the
branch office

on arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and is fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial
terms and comparable to and are
on terms no less favorable than the
prevailing market rate as confirmed
by an independent property valuer
engaged by the Group.



hEEE - BER 01558
B REANERRES rEBRAS BT HERRSHR RAEM EEER (B7x)
Name, Date and Current Term  Transaction Party Counter Party, Nature and Basis for Determining the Consideration
No.  of the Agreement and Rental  within the Group Description of the Transaction Transaction Purpose ~ Consideration for 2015 (HK$)
7 AOREBER04E1AI REEERTE (RF) NESAEARTRERERTE  AREBERFRER AEDEESLTHEAEE A 191,204
BRI (SR ERGRER  ARAR AREZE  (RF) ARAA REEHERL SEEINEUNEEENRSD
#) E2ENBAR FRESELATAE Ho-RE
RFIRHm K5 H2-6B RS X RBN BROMEREETER
RHEE  2014511A1RZ BH730-8045()10EMELEERE RITHEMES -
2017%10A318 BRIB 40T HERNDE : (1018
NEZREERL10007HERH
18R+ 164364871 W% (i TBEAN S EERRRE
159 T FERGME
7 Two lease agreements signed ~ EGL Tours (Macau) Property leased by Great Port For using as the The rental was determined based 1,911,224
on 13 November 2014 Company Limited, an  to EGL Tours (Macau) Company Macau office and call  on arm’s length negotiations
(Collectively, the “China Plaza  indirect wholly-owned  Limited centre between the parties and is fair and
Lease Agreements’) subsidiary of the reasonable, on normal commercial
Company (i) the premises of a total gross terms and comparable to and are
Term for each lease: From 1 floor area of approximately 3,460 on terms no less favorable than the
November 2014 to 31 October sq.ft. located at Unit M, 10/F, (il prevaiing market rate as confirmed
2017 the premises of a total gross floor by an independent property valuer
area of approximately 1,000 sq.ft. engaged by the Group.
Aggregate monthly rental: located at Unit N, 10/F, and {iii) the
MOP164,364 premises of a total saleable floor
area of approximately 1,159 sq.ft.
located at Shop B, G/F of Nos.
730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande,
Nos. 2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV,
Macau
2015% 3% 2015 Annual Report 051
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052 FmBERABMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Note 1:

Great Port is a company owned by Mr. Yuen Man Ying as to
approximately 26.70%, Ms. Lee Po Fun as to approximately 0.90%, Mr.
Huen Kwok Chuen as to approximately 23.08%, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu
as to approximately 9.95%, being all of the Executive Directors and the
remaining interests are owned by Yohki as to approximately 26.24%,
Mr. Lam Wai Man as to approximately 4.98%, Mr. Lui Lok Pun as to
approximately 4.98% and Mr. Chong Cheung Po as to approximately
3.17%. Mr. Lam, Mr. Lui and Mr. Chong were directors of the Group’s
subsidiaries, EGL Tours and i-Evertravel and resigned on 31 December
2014. The Executive Directors together controlled approximately 60.63%
voting power of Great Port, and therefore Great Port is an associate of
the Executive Directors under the Listing Rules.

The above CCT are included in “Rental paid to a related
company — Great Port” in related party transactions disclosed in
note 33(a) in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report. Save as disclosed above, no other related
party transactions conducted in the Year as disclosed in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements constitute a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction which is required
to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its holding company or any of their
respective subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an
entity connected with the Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between, the Company or
any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.



B FRTE RO EN DA ANKBMAT LR ERER
5 UHRZSFHEBBEIZ IR TIERTEL : ()
RARERE R —REFBEFET ()R —REBEK
AR T AEENERKTNERN R TAREBLE =T 2
AT - RVZRREZSHEBEI HNRBE
IR - MAEBGRBERATFEEANEARARAERR
M EBRAERPIEINL ©

ARRRHIMNEZHENER BRES S A ELN
(EFB%EIEMERIZ000) [ 52 /175 & L &5 HBEBIIA
SNIZREIE A | W2 R E B A E 7405 BN BB
CEMMRBIDPTIHFBREE R R BEN KT ] - SRS
ENRSERERXSERER - INERBEEREC LT
MADFE14A61KE HE B BB 5B G R E
REE R

EERAAATDAT L RNEUASHRER T -

(22 ]

AERZRAMERRCABBLEERSAMELH
BRAREZ  ZREBEMERE IFaERERE
B 2016 RBAFAEG LHIRERER  NEER
BUEREEHMEFMARATA/NRFZEED -

AEEEM

TEFEHTESE
RNE
HA 0 201653 A21H

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and (i) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s external auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA. The external auditor
issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the transactions disclosed in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the 2016 AGM.

By order of the Board
Yuen Man Ying

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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054 FmBERABMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the Year, the Board is of opinion that the Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. The Company has made
a specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-compliance
with the Model Code.

All the Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic decisions
to the Group’s activities and oversees its financial performances.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. During the
Year, the role of the Chairman is performed by Mr. Yuen Man
Ying while the office of the chief executive officer of the Company
is vacated. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of
the Board from time to time and should candidate with suitable
knowledge, skill and experience be identified, the Company will
make appointment to fill the post as appropriate.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Currently, the Board comprises four Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors. At least one of the
Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the appropriate
professional accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules. During the Year, the number of Independent
Non-executive Directors represents more than one-third of the
Board. As such, there exists a strong independent element in the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement. The
Board comprises the following Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming
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056 FmBERABMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The Chairman and Executive Director, Mr. Yuen Man Ying is
the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director. All of the
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok
Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun, are interested
in the Company’s shares through their interest in Evergloss, the
holding company of the Company. All of the Executive Directors
have interests in the shares of Great Port, which has certain
continuing connected transactions with the Company. Please refer
to the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”,
“Report of the Directors — Interests in Shares of the Associated
Corporation of the Company” and “Report of the Directors -
Connected Transactions and Directors’ Interests in Contracts”
on pages 67 to 70, pages 39 to 40 and pages 47 to 53 in this
annual report respectively for more details. Save as disclosed
above, the Directors have no other financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with one another.

INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors, a written confirmation of his independence to the
Company pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to
be independent in accordance with the relevant guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. During the Year, the Company
arranged an in-house seminar and funded suitable trainings
covering the topic of Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance with
training materials provided.
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T

According to records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors for the Year is as follows:

£ TR AR A BRI ST
Training on Listing Rules
and Companies Ordinance

BITES Executive Directors

RXHEE(EE) Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman) J

HEEEE Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen J

Ry |t Mr. Leung Shing Chiu v
BER5A Tt Ms. Lee Po Fun J

BAFEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

BRIRIE ST Mr. Chan Kim Fai v

B ST A Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric J

\HERZT Ms. Wong Lai Ming J

EERE-EERRHE

BHITESTHAR B R2014F11B13H T L REA
4 {THIER2014F11 A28BRA =ZF - EE2RER
B A2014F 11 B1BANEENEXRZSBLIENITTE
B NS A2014F11 A28 AR =F o

SR BERBNEFEEIERAARE
RERAARE  CAEESEZENAMRESSRE
ERNESR  THEZSHBEZERARAERBTZR
RRXgR/ILE  YIRERNEERRZAE LBEET -
TAREESZEUANARBESENES  EHES
ARBTEERBAFAERIL  YRERTEERBEER
BIE o

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company on 13 November 2014 for a term
of three years commencing from 28 November 2014. Each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors was appointed to the
Board pursuant to the respective letters of appointment dated
13 November 2014 for an initial term of three years commencing
from 28 November 2014.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of the Directors are governed by the Articles. The Articles
provides that any director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”)and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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In accordance with the Articles, at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less than,
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election. Any
Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in
the three years preceding an AGM shall retire by rotation at such
meeting. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Accordingly, three Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu,
Ms. Lee Po Fun and Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric shall retire at the
2016 AGM. All of the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the same meeting.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a
year.

If a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and
he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each
Director at the Board and committee meetings of the Company
held during the Year:

HE BITHERREH
Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
B RkEE RE M
EEXE88 %8998 ZE98¥ %8983 L5983
Risk
Audit Management Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee = Committee = Committee = Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
WITES Executive Directors
RXELE Mr. Yuen Man Ying 6/6 - - 11 1/1
FEELE Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen 6/6 - - - -
28R E Mr. Leung Shing Chiu 6/6 - 2/2 - -
5%t Ms. Lee Po Fun 6/6 - - 11 1/1
BUERITES Independent Non-executive
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An AGM is an important forum in which the management of the
Company can engage with the shareholders. The most recent
AGM was held on 22 May 2015 (2015 AGM”).

At the 2015 AGM, all Directors in office on the meeting date,
including the Chairman of the Board and all the chairmen and
members of the Board committees, attended the meeting along
with key senior management and the external auditor. At the 2015
AGM, separate resolutions were proposed for each issue and
were voted on by poll. The procedures for conducting a poll were
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.

The voting results are available on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to shareholders on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 13 November 2014.
The existing terms of reference were adopted by the Board
on 31 December 2015 in compliance with the CG Code. The
Audit Committee comprises a total of three members, all being
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Kim Fai
(Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) reviewing financial information of the Group; (ii)
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; (iii) monitoring of the relationship between the
Group and its external auditors and (iv) developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance with legal and
regulatory requirements and requirements under the Listing Rules.

During the Year, 5 meetings of the Audit Committee were held
to make recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of auditor, approve the engagement letter of the auditor, review
the Company’s CCT and review the Company’s interim result,
consolidated financial statements for submission to the Board for
approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to perform
the corporate governance function. The responsibilities of audit
committee on corporate governance function are set out in the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee. During the Year, the
Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 13
November 2014, with specific written terms of reference. The
Risk Management Committee comprises a total of four members,
being one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan
Kim Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai
Ming. Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for risk
assessment and risk management and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management function.

During the Year, two meetings of the Risk Management
Committee were held to review internal control of the Group
and review the Company’s high-level related risks and key
emerging risks and the controls in place to mitigate such
risks, review the Company’s surplus cash management, and
provide recommendation to improve the Company’s surplus
cash management for the Year for submission to the Board for
approval.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 November
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Nomination Committee comprises a total of
five members, being two Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yuen
Man Ying (Chairman) and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming. Accordingly, a majority
of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

During the Year, a meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 November
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of
five members, being two Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yuen
Man Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon
Hung Eric (Chairman) and Ms. Wong Lai Ming. Accordingly, a
majority of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a set of
formal and transparent procedures for developing policies on
such remuneration; (i) reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and (iii) making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of Executive Directors and
members of senior management.

During the Year, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held on 23 March 2015 to review the remuneration package of
the individual Executive Directors and senior management for
submission to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management of the Company
then in office by band for the Year are as follows:

A

Number of

FHENAE B Remuneration band individuals
L 21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 5
1,000,001 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to 2,000,000 4
9

BESAFENFIFBRN GRS M HRERM T2
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Details of the remuneration of each Director for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All the Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr.
Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun
has provided annual confirmations in respect of the compliance
with non-competition undertakings (“Undertakings”) given by them
in favour of the Company pursuant to a deed of non-competition
undertakings dated 13 November 2014.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have also reviewed
the compliance by each of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr.
Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu
and Ms. Lee Po Fun with the Undertakings during the Year. The
Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed that, as far
as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any of Evergloss,
Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen,
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun of the Undertakings
given by them.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remunerations paid
or payable to the external auditors in respect of its audit services
and non-audit services provided to the Group were approximately
HK$1.2 million and HK$0.3 million, respectively. The non-audit
services consist of taxation and other services.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 71 to 72.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls. The
internal controls are designed to meet the Group’s particular
needs and to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed,
and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks to
achieve business objective and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against misstatements or losses.

During the Year, on behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee and
Risk Management Committee review the continued effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
dealing with risk and financial accounting and reporting, the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, compliance with laws
and regulations, and risk management functions.

During the Year, the Company also engaged an external independent
professional consultant to review the effectiveness of certain of the
Group’s risk management and internal controls systems.

The review covered the following items within the Group:
Monitoring Compliance — Corporate Governance

System Post-Implementation Review

Branch Operations

Procurement

IT General Controls

Relevant applicable recommendations made by the consultant
during the Year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices.



ERX ENER EFeRAAKENAREENFEE
HESRALEN  ARAFECETERAREZN
TEERTRIRARRRE NBPEZBEE

ARE

ARBRAWE - BHEEFLLIEET - RAWERAE
NEREE  YHEFSERME - ARANERAREESTS
MWEFRESEXNEZANRERRMEBERE 2 MrE
B RFIMEAXRBFEXEISNREBANERXE
Al - AT R EL AR R AN

AR R HEF

ARABRRAE/BERIETSREBBNKE - AR
AEFREFSRENHBITRRAFAS -

R AR FHIAX

RIESRAAFAR  BRFHIAGAEIBRXZHAR
RABEREBLMARF  MRERRRERERE BER
BRVRERRBRAE ERENARBEHBRAN T+
DZ— o ZFRBRKBAUNEAMAESTGRARABBAM
FEMNARWEED(HREIAEENEEEEE
BEIFRBEES15E)  YVAHIRHERERE UL
KEF G IEXE RFTIEE I F5 3 FBRE 5
RE - HEFENZABRERXK21ARNREBFHZK
g ARBEBREAARSZ)IABRSIAERAE
MARBAREHEREBNIEHERERNESTGREE
BRASMELENMARIEMX -

As a result of the above review, the Board confirms that the
Group’s risk management internal control systems are adequate
and effective and have complied with the CG Code provisions
on internal control throughout the Year and the Company has an
internal audit function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy. The
Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the Board’s processes and communications among
Board members, with shareholders and with management. The
Company Secretary undertakes at least 15 hours of relevant
professional training annually to update her skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, EGM shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated
at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s). If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
for putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The requirements
and procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed
“Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

No amendment has been made to the Company’s Memorandum
of Association and Articles of Association during the Year.

By order of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
21 March 2016
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen, Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 64 is the founder of
the Group and was appointed as the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. Mr. Yuen joined the
Group in 1987. Mr. Yuen is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Board. Mr. Yuen serves as the managing director of EGL Tours
Company Limited (“EGL Tours”) and as a director of EGL Tours,
EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited (“EGL Japan”), EGL Tours
(Macau) Company Limited (“EGL Macau”), i-Evertravel Company
Limited (“i-Evertravel”), EGL Management Group Company
Limited (“EGL Management”), EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited
(“EGL Nippon”), EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited (“EGL Asia”), EGL
Investment Group Company Limited (“EGL Investment”) and
EGL Investment (China) Company Limited (“EGL China”). He
is responsible for major decision making, itinerary planning for
tours to Japan, promoting the Japanese market, supervising and
training tour escorts and planning air charter of the Group. Mr.
Yuen has over 30 years of extensive knowledge and experience in
the tourism industry. Mr. Yuen is the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun,
an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Huen, Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”), aged 58, was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 24 July 2014.
Mr. Huen joined the Group in 1987. Mr. Huen also serves as a
director of EGL Tours, EGL Japan, EGL Macau, i-Evertravel, EGL
Management, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment and EGL
China and the spokesman of the Group. He is responsible for
overseeing development, public relations, specialised gourmet
tours and the Macau subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Huen has over
30 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism
industry.

Mr. Leung, Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”), aged 61, was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. Mr.
Leung joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Leung is a member of the
Risk Management Committee of the Board. Mr. Leung also serves
as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Japan, EGL Macau, i-Evertravel,
EGL Management, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment and
EGL China. He is responsible for managing the receiving services
for outbound tours in Japan, frontline sales, customer services,
accounting and administration matters of the Group. Mr. Leung
has over 30 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the
tourism industry.
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Ms. Lee, Po Fun (“Mrs. Yuen”), aged 57, was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. Mrs.
Yuen is a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Board. Mrs. Yuen joined the
Group in 1987. Mrs. Yuen also serves as a director of EGL
Tours, EGL Japan, EGL Macau, i-Evertravel, EGL Management,
EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment and EGL China. She is
responsible for overseeing the information technology department,
human resources development, outbound tour services and the
overall operations of the Group. Mrs. Yuen has over 30 years of
extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry. Mrs.
Yuen is the spouse of Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Chan, Kim Fai (“Mr. Chan”), aged 57, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 13 November 2014. Mr. Chan is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and Risk Management Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Board. Mr. Chan is responsible for overseeing the management
of the Group independently. Mr. Chan is currently an independent
non-executive director of Magnificent Hotel Investments Limited,
Shun Ho Resources Holdings Limited and Shun Ho Technology
Holdings Limited (all these three companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Chan has also served
as the sole proprietor of lvan Chan & Co, CPA since 2001. Mr.
Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and CPA Australia.

Ms. Wong, Lai Ming (“Ms. Wong”), aged 57, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
13 November 2014. She is a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Board. She is responsible for
overseeing the management of the Group independently. Ms.
Wong has over 20 years of experience in the legal industry.
She is currently Of Counsel of King & Wood Mallesons, Beijing
office. Ms. Wong is a practicing lawyer in the PRC and is a non-
practising solicitor in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Tang, Koon Hung, Eric (“Mr. Tang”), aged 70, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 13 November 2014. He is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee of
the Board. He is responsible for overseeing the management of
the Group independently. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of ASM Pacific Technology Ltd (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Tang was
qualified a Chartered Accountant in Canada and is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheang, Chuen Hon (“Mr. Cheang”), aged 51, was
appointed as the financial controller of the Group on 1 April 2004.
He is responsible for supervision and management of the Group’s
financial issues. He joined the Group in June 2001 as a finance
manager before being promoted as the financial controller of EGL
Tours in April 2004.

Mr. Cheang has over 25 years of extensive accounting and
financial experience, in which 10 years in another public listed
company (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange), with latest position as accounting manager.

Mr. Cheang graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor degree in social sciences in November 1988 and later
obtained a master degree of science in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001. Mr. Cheang
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Certified Finance and Treasury
Professional Senior of the Finance and Treasury Association
Limited.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong, Cheuk Yee Kathy (“Ms. Wong”), aged 54, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 28
August 2014. She is responsible for the company secretarial
matters of the Group. Ms. Wong has been the company secretary
of EGL Tours since September 2006, being responsible for its
general company secretarial affairs. Ms. Wong has over 30 years
of experience in the accounting, audit and tax industry.

Ms. Wong received a diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong
Shue Yan College in July 1984 and a bachelor of law degree from
Peking University through long distance learning in July 1996.
Ms. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong
Kong and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EGL
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 73 to 148, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2015 and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate number PO5057

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HZE 2015912 A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014

Hte FHET FAT

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

& Revenue 7 1,858,341 1,685,245

SHE KA Cost of sales (1,423,590) (1,344,282)

EF Gross profit 434,751 340,963

HMUg A KR Uezs /(518 );%%8  Other income and gain/(loss), net 7 1,111 6,274
PTESBMT A S RAEI  Net realised and unrealised loss on

B8535 derivative financial instruments (131) (485)
HE R Selling expenses (105,069) (91,434)
THAX Administrative expenses (156,460) (165,143)
FE(G B & A B A Share of results of associates 1,485 =
FREFISFLA R A Profit before income tax 8 175,687 90,175
e Eif Income tax expense 9 (25,253) (15,668)
FERA Profit for the year 150,434 74,507
HETEH»EEEEN Other comprehensive income,

Hih 2wk : that may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss:
HEGINETSRIE =58 Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operations (85) -
FEMR ARG SN & A F) Share of exchange differences on translation

HYIE 5 2R of foreign associates (83) -
FEEMEERKE - Other comprehensive income for the year,

HERHIE net of tax (168) _
FELHNRETE Total comprehensive income for the year 150,266 74,507
AT AT EMFEER : Profit for the year attributable to:

ZIN/NEIEZZE DN Owners of the Company 150,469 74,507

FEVEIRME RS Non-controlling interests (35) -

150,434 74,507
LUTALEMARZEWZELEE : Total comprehensive income attributable to:
ViN/NETEZ =N Owners of the Company 150,333 74,507
IR Non-controlling interests (67) =
150,266 74,507
RATEE A EF Earnings per share for profit attributable
ZBREF to owners of the Company
—EAREECEW) - Basic and diluted (HK cents) 10 29.95 18.20
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R2015512 A31H As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
HtaF FH&T FHT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FREEE Non-current assets
M - R RERE Property, plant and equipment 14 12,117 9,205
TR HER K Prepaid lease payments 15 = 4,645
N NS Interests in associates 16 2,467 -
EETIRE E Deferred tax asset 17 395 766
14,979 14,616
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 18 7,300 3,622
5 R Trade receivables 19 1,710 1,485
FENEERK Prepaid lease payments 15 - 1,672
&~ AR EAMEKER Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 20 121,678 104,092
FEUR EFE A R BR 5K Amount due from a related company 21 2,503 2,503
JE B 4 8 R BR 5K Amount due from an associate 16 834 =
JFERTE Tax recoverable - 163
PIRRITFR Pledged bank deposits 22 21,965 22,039
ReRIREEED Cash and cash equivalents 22 453,145 324,378
609,135 459,954
REBAE Current liabilities
B SR Trade payables 23 52,037 53,686
JEETEIE » BEWET € & Accruals, deposits received and
HAh R BR other payables 24 194,866 184,370
FEHE A RIBR AR Amount due to an associate 16 4,594 =
BRARBEFTAEEN Financial liabilities at fair value through
ERAE profit or loss 25 _ 170
IR Provision for taxation 11,544 2,345
263,041 240,571
REEEFE Net current assets 346,094 219,383
EEFE Net assets 361,073 233,999
e EQUITY
RATRHEE NE Capital and reserves attributable to
LERR FEE owners of the Company
R Share capital 26 50,245 50,245
E Reserves 27 308,964 183,754
359,209 233,999
FEiER RS Non-controlling interests 1,864 -
AR Total equity 361,073 233,999
REES=S On behalf of the Board of Directors
RIKE 2Rl
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HITES HITES

Executive Director

074 FmiEEREMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

Z2015F 128318 IEF

/€ For the year ended 31 December 2015

NG N
Attributable to owners of the Company
R RVEE AfRE AERE NERE RERAF Bt FERER BRAE
Foreign Non-
Share Share  Merger  Statutory exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital premium*  reserve®  reserve*  reserve®  earnings* Total interests equity
Thr TEr Tt TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TET  TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
01451418 At 1 January 2014 8,315 - - 872 (3 218279 222,463 - 222,463
FRERREENAEE Proft and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 74,507 74,507 - 74,507
ERRERE i 11) Interim dividends paid (nofe 11) - - - - - (197,353 (197,359) - (197,353)
SESMAEL(Ht260) Arising from group reorganisation (note 26/a)) (3,315) - 335 - - - - - -
SEEARETRN Issue of shares upon group reorganisation
(Hito6p) (note 26(b)) 1 61197 (61,199) - - - = = =
BIBRTRAH#266))  lssue of shares upon capitalisation (nofe 26(c) 39,999 (39,999) - - - - - = =
HBERRTRA(H260)  Issue of shares upon global offering (note 26(d) 10,000 129,000 - - - - 139,000 - 139,000
BERERZTRIAH726/)  Issue of shares upon over-allotment (note 26() 245 3,161 - - - - 3,406 - 3406
KpEAER Share issuance expenses - B0 - - - - B - 80
46,930 45335 (67,883 - - (197,383  (62971) - (6297)
R2014E128318 R At 31 December 2014 and
201551 A1A 1 January 2015 50,245 45335 (67,883 872 %) 95,433 233,999 - 23399
EEEH Profit for the year - - - - - 150469 150,469 (85 150,434
A2 ik Other comprehensive income
BEENBOELZE Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations = = = = (63) = (63) (32) 89)
EaEENGEAT Share of exchange differences on translation
HES 28 of foreign associates - - - - (83) = (83) = (83)
FESANGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (186) 150469 150,333 (67) 150,266
BENBLFEEN Non-controling interests arising from
RS formation of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 193 1,931
ERwERE M 11) Interim dividends paid (note 11) = = = = - (519 (25129 - (1))
R2015%128318 At 31 December 2015 50,245 145335  (57,889) 872 (139) 220,779 359,209 1,864 361,073
* ZERB REAMLAVBMRARPRERE] - * The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows
£ 201512 A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Hiat FEIT FA&T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
RETBEENRERE Cash flows from operating activities
R P15 55 Al b ) Profit before income tax 175,687 90,175
KR Adjustments for:
FEMA Interest income (1,464) (1,214)
TR & Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 1,276 1,618
M - BE KR Depreciation of property, plant and
REBITE equipment 4,387 3,733
HEME  BEK& Loss on disposal of property, plant and
RENEEFE equipment, net - 20
FEE A FEUAR Bad debts directly written off in respect of
B EER other receivables - 1
FEIREEE N R A Share of results of associates (1,485) -
PTESMTARREE Change in fair value of derivative financial
BE)FER instruments, net (170) 891
LB E S HEFH Operating profit before working capital
Skl changes 178,231 95,224
FEGEEM (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (3,678) 1,634
Z S rEWERE (3En) mi (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (225) 1,008
1% B A A FE YR (Increase)/Decrease in deposits, prepayments
(1), wWD and other receivables (12,398) 3,571
JE L B 5 8 B BR R IE AN Increase in amount due from an associate (834) =
FE S B 5 A B BR X3 40 Increase in amount due to an associate 4,594 -
FEMRRE R ﬁﬂ%mﬂ?‘ Decrease in amounts due from related
companies - 2,941
2 2 N ER CRiA) /1 (Decrease)/Increase in trade payables (1,649) 5,845
FExt3E  BEWET S & Increase/(Decrease) in accruals, deposits
H b EAERIE I, CRA) received and other payables 10,496 (21,286)
LEEANIRS Cash generated from operations 174,537 88,937
EARPTEH Income tax paid (15,552) (27,744)
AL E B E R 2 FE Net cash generated from operating activities 158,985 61,193
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE 2015912 A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Htet FE T FAT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RETBEENRENE Cash flows from investing activities
HBEYE  BEMK Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7,299) (5,207)
BRI TF IR Decrease in pledged bank deposits 74 262
KB E QR FEMA R EE Capital injection into associates upon
e AN incorporation of associates (1,065) -
B & Interest received 1,317 1,051
RE)F B TR E ) F 5 Net cash used in investing activities (6,973) (3,894)
REREEENRENRE Cash flows from financing activities
B AR, Dividends paid (25,123) (197,353)
NI ER S D VAo Contributions from non-controlling interests
IR T A upon incorporation of subsidiaries 1,931 =
BT EBRFTSRIE Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares - 134,382
BEE Z B AT AR B 2 F 58 Net cash used in financing activities (23,192) (62,971)
HERREEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
G ) R cash equivalents 128,820 (5,672)
SNBE R RS B B Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (53) =
FHEERESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 324,378 330,050
ERBERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 22 453,145 324,378

2015% 3% 2015 Annual Report
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RBEZERAERLT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

1.

GENERAL

EGL Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2014 as
an exempted company with limited liability. The address
of its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands. Its
principal place of business is located at 15/F, EGL Tower,
83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 November 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Evergloss Management Group Company Limited
(“Evergloss”), incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
llBVl!l)'

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 were approved by the board of directors on
21 March 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 2015912 A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

2. FRANEEMAEREEL 2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

@) AR AE IS E BRI TE R E2ER — (a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
2015F 1 H1HAEX effective 1 January 2015
AATIREMBAT (NGB ANER )R In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
REEBEHREMNATNE SN2 E M (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) have
HET S RG] E S S IRE R - 32 S %R applied for the first time the following new or amended
BEANAREENR2015%F1 A1 B 5 2 FEH HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
2 B iRk - Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which are relevant

to and effective for the Group’s financial statements for
the annual year beginning on 1 January 2015:

BAEPERELER  2010FE20124F HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements
CEHEN) BRI E U 2010-2012 Cycle

BRI RS AR 2011EF2013F HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
CHEN, B EF E kol 2011-2013 Cycle

AN S W EN A EE SRR SR E The adoption of these amendments has no material

KELE - impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially

relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been

issued, but are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 27
HKFRS 9 (2014)
Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

HKFRS 15

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle!
Disclosure Initiative!

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'’

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture'

Investment Entities:
Applying the
Consolidation
Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations’

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities
to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

An entity’s share of other comprehensive income from
equity accounted interests in associates and joint
ventures will be split between those items that will and
will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and presented
in aggregate as a single line item within those two
groups.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 - Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted if
either the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if the objective of the entity’s business model
is both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows
and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at fair
value through other comprehensive income. All other
debt and equity instruments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at fair
value through profit or loss replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in the financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss, where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to change in credit
risk of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 — Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments clarify that the exemption from
preparing consolidated financial statements for an
intermediate parent entity is available to a subsidiary
of an investment entity (including investment entities
that account for their subsidiaries at fair value rather
than consolidating them). An investment entity parent
will consolidate a subsidiary only when the subsidiary
is not itself an investment entity and the subsidiary’s
main purpose is to provide services that relate to
the investment entity’s investment activities. A non-
investment entity applying the equity method to an
associate or joint venture that is an investment entity
may retain the fair value measurements that associate
or joint venture used for its subsidiaries. An investment
entity that prepares financial statements in which all
its subsidiaries are measured at fair value through
profit or loss should provide the disclosures related to
investment entities as required by HKFRS 12.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 - Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments require an entity to apply all of the
principles of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations when it
acquires an interest in a joint operation that constitutes
a business as defined in that standard. The principles
of HKFRS 3 are also applied upon the formation of a
joint operation if an existing business as defined in that
standard is contributed by at least one of the parties.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  l|dentify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRSs. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new or amended HKFRSs upon
initial application but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new or amended HKFRSs would have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.
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2 IRUNE BT IRE R 2 2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
provisions relating to the preparation of
financial statements

The disclosure requirements of the new Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622, in relation to the preparation
of financial statements apply to the Company in this
financial year.

The directors consider that there is no impact on the
Group’s financial position or performance, however,
the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, impacts on
the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. For example, the statement of
financial position of the Company is now presented
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
rather than as a primary statement and related notes
to the statement of financial position of the Company
are generally no longer presented.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which collective
terms include all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA. The consolidated financial statements also include
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments which are stated at fair value.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
judgements are used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based on

management’s best knowledge and judgement of current

events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ

from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree

of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions

and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in note 5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group entities together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiaries is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

(©)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable during the year.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint
control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(@)

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’'s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arisen,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.



ira MR K

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2015912 A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

4. FEGFBR®E)

(e)

()

ERN NG L AC )

ME - BERREBTEREMGAIERFS
AEARORIZ A N E R E AMBHE A © ff
AR ER R EERRERRETE
ZRARER) -

HEMELRE 30%3k I H -

AEIG = A
NS 20%
e R 20%
qE 20%
REREEESE 20%

HMEENFHESREMGATKRESER - B
SRR MO E H AT YL Ol 578 -

HEWE BERRFEHEBMEENED -
TR EMSFIRF R A HREEN Z /AT
B YRHERNBEPRHER

ENHEN

BNEENFIEHEREER ST - %
FFRIRTHIRAR AN R 5t 36 S T REHRUE
ERSIBR o B TYIASR B h T T IR
DR B Kt E BT R R A B AROR T

H o
ZAr

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e

(®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated so as to
write off their costs over their estimated useful lives,
using a straight-line basis, at the rates shown below
per annum. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period.

Leasehold 30% or over the lease term,

improvements whichever is shorter
Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent up-front payments
for the rental of travel buses. They are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The amortisation is calculated
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, which
is negotiated and agreed between the Group and a
lessor on an arm’s length basis from time to time.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Where the Group has the right over the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rent is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments

()

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for
which the asset was acquired. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. Regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is
a purchase or sale of a financial asset under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the time frame established generally
by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

%2 For the year ended 31 December 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of the reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset
is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

= granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; and

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of financial asset is determined
as uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for the relevant financial asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract
may be designated as a financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss if the following criteria are met: (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the liabilities or recognising gains
or losses on them on a different basis; (i) the
liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy;
or (iii) the financial liability contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, accruals, other payables and
amount due to an associate are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and

subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other

costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition. Cost is calculated

using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value

represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business less the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the sales of
goods, rendering of services and the use by others
of the Group’s assets yielding interest, net of rebates
and discounts. Provided it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Group and revenue can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Income from provision of package tours is recognised
when the services are rendered by the Group.

Income from provision of ancillary travel related
services, management services and sales of air
tickets, hotel accommodation and hotel packages
is recognised when the services are rendered by
the Group as an agent on a net basis. Where the
Group acts as a principal in certain transactions,
including sales of tickets and merchandise, revenue is
recognised upon transfer of the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the customer. This is usually
taken as the time when the tickets and merchandise
are delivered and the customer has accepted the
tickets and merchandise.

Commission income is recognised when the services
are rendered by the Group.

Interest income is recognised on a time basis on the
principals outstanding at the applicable interest rates.

Rebate from a supplier is recognised as income when
the Group’s entitlement to the rebate is established
in accordance with the terms of the subscriber
agreement, i.e. when the booking of the corresponding
travel item is confirmed.
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T [Z For the year ended 31 December 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

k)

Accounting for income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate
to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4.

%2 For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand as well as short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions after payment of the fixed contribution.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries to the maximum
mandatory contributions as required by the MPF
Scheme. Liabilities and assets may be recognised
if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and
are included in current liabilities or current assets,
respectively, as they are normally of a short-term
nature. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(n)

Defined contribution retirement plan (Continued)

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
prepaid lease payments; and
interests in associates

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(b)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)

is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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(Continued)

(p) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of the reporting period
so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value
of the options, measured immediately before and after
the modification, is also recognised in profit or loss
over the remaining vesting period.
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T [Z For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Share-based payments (Continued)

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For
cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services
received.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i)  Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment and amortises prepaid lease payments
in accordance with the accounting policies stated
in notes 4(e) and 4(f) respectively. The estimated
useful lives reflect the management’s estimates of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets. The
management reassesses the estimated useful lives at
the end of the reporting period.
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(i)
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

%2 For the year ended 31 December 2015

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Impairment of receivables

The management assesses impairment of receivables
on a regular basis. This estimate is based on the credit
history of the customers and debtors and current
market conditions. The management reassesses the
impairment of receivables at the end of the reporting
period.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgements are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. Where the final tax
outcomes are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods
in which such determination are made.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’s financial statements require measurement at,
and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities utilises market observable inputs
and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining
fair value measurements are categorised into different
levels based on how observable the inputs used in
the valuation technique utilised are (the “Fair Value
Hierarchy”):

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

Level 38: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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5. TEeEEHEHE ) 5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iv) Fair value measurement (Continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period in which they occur.

The Group measures derivative financial instruments at
fair value.

For more detailed information in relation to the fair
value measurement of the item above, please refer to
the applicable note.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has identified its operating segments based on
the regular internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision makers about allocation of resources to
assess the performance of the Group’s business.

The only component in internal reporting to the chief
operating decision makers is the Group’s travel and travel
related services business during the year. In this regard,
the management considers that there is only one operating
segment under the requirements of HKFRS 8 — Operating
Segments and no segment information is presented.

As most revenue of the Group is derived from Hong Kong
and Macau and no transactions with a single customer
amount to 10 per cent or more of the Group’s revenue, no
segment analysis by geographic location or major customer
is presented.
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EREMBARWE (BE)F 7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN/

7.

(LOSS), NET

W e FE iR 1T B R 8 BY I IR AT AR B EE mn O B 2R (B Revenue includes the net invoiced value of package tours
UAERBBdEEZR([AERTDEES - @#RIRET and ancillary travel related products and the net proceeds
=(EEHRTEESEA BERITESR]) REM from free independent travellers (“FIT”) packages, individual
RITHBERGEH TS RIEERE - KEEREZNS travel elements (together with FIT packages referred to as “FIT

TRRSBERNSEBHINET ¢

Products”) and ancillary travel related services. The amounts
of each significant category of revenue recognised during
the year are as follows:

2015 2014
FExT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
g & Revenue

IRITE Package tours 1,660,538 1,524,714
BETERH ) FIT Products (note) 76,088 75,421

S EIRT TR E M Ancillary travel related products and
KRR (M aE) services (note) 121,715 85,110
1,858,341 1,685,245

HiR AR WK (E518) B8
SN JE5 1R B

Other income and gain/(loss), net
Exchange loss, net (4,230) (8,466)

BRIBUA K Handling income and forfeited fees
& 2 I A from customers 621 2,030
RITFRAEHA Interest income on bank deposits 1,464 1,214
EEBEIWA Management fee income = 15
HRER a4 Rebate from a supplier 2,875 5,486
e A Rental income = 8
EIEV N Sundry income 381 987
1,111 6,274
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7. WHEEHMANRUWZ (&E)F%E 7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN/

(&) (LOSS), NET (Continued)

Bt AEEBERTERNME THEKRITHBER R Note: The Group’s revenue from FIT Products and certain ancillary
RIGEEHN B SR BERREBARZEANR
MR L - FAmatAFE - SR RRKPISHIE
R TR

travel related products and services is considered as cash
collected on behalf of principals as an agent, and thus
recorded on a net basis. The gross proceeds received and
receivable are as follows:

2015 2014

FHBT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

B U & FE U BT S R Ia 4858 Gross proceeds received and receivable 608,375 730,781

8. BRErEHaiEH 8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

BRATSTATE M HRIA TIRB S

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging:

2015 2014
FE T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEASH AR & A~ R 6 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 1,276 1,618
2 BT 37 Auditors’ remuneration 1,186 940
EMEWIREE Bad debts directly written off in respect of
i EH 2 B other receivables - 1
R ABFAZNFERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 41,299 29,577
M BERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,387 3,733
X Listing expenses (included in administrative
(Gt ATTHAEX) expenses) = 18,606
HEME - WE K& Loss on disposal of property, plant and
BN EEFE equipment, net - 20
MATEHENSEHSEHS Operating lease rental in respect of:
—ME — Premises 25,289 22,373
— AR — Office equipment 2,287 2,116
— HRiEEER — Travel buses 57,304 36,291
EERAN(BFENMT124FTS  Employee costs (including directors’
EEHM): emoluments in note 12):
—Fe kEMEYREF — Salaries and other benefits in kind 148,100 141,994
—RIRETH 2 — Retirement scheme contributions 6,183 5,070
154,283 147,064
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o

110

IRyl 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2015 2014
FiET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BIHEARTE — BB R BB Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
—ARFERIE — Tax for the year 23,749 14,898
—BEFEEERE — Over-provision in respect of prior year (785) (1,414)
22,964 13,484
BIERSIE — BRI RS R Current tax — Macau Complementary Tax
—RFEEHIA - Tax for the year 1,898 2,345
—BEFEBEREE — Over-provision in respect of prior year (35) =
1,863 2,345
BERBETE — piE A RERE Current tax — People’s Republic of China
(T E ) EFEH (“PRC”) Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
—ARFEERIA — Tax for the year 55 _
EEBIR (M 17) Deferred tax (note 17)
—RAFEEEZRNG,(GtA) — Charged/(Credited) to profit or loss
for the year 371 (161)
25,253 15,668

RERSHERRBRIESHER  NESH
ERRBRZEESEMKLNEEER  ARY
BENFESRSRRBRELAESETER - RER
GFE

REEFBHEHRIBENRESELENNER A
Bt FERE B F1216.5% (2014 : 16.5% ) 895+
KErE o

AERER EFERPBPILENNB R RN
& R 50348 1) B9 SR P PR 15 4 FE A T 3R 1 2% Y B R &1

= o
A

RBEZERAERLT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The group entities incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
the BVI are tax-exempted as no business is carried out
in the Cayman Islands and the BVI under the laws of the
Cayman Islands and the BVI respectively.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits of subsidiaries operating
in Hong Kong for the year.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% on the
estimated assessable profits of a subsidiary operating in
Macau for both years.
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9.

P S BRI 32 ()

T [Z For the year ended 31 December 2015

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

DEFERIERAEE I LM SR RS iRS EIT represents deemed income tax charged at the
IR {THE S T R HE E BT BT o appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the PRC for a

RERREAENAEHAXRES

representative office newly set up during the year.

St A 55 BE 4n Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

T profit at applicable tax rates:
2015 2014
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
KR TS5 Bl A1) Profit before income tax 175,687 90,175
BEBFEHE16.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax
(2014 : 16.5% ) st EHITIE rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) 28,989 14,879
REMREMEZENNEAT Tax effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary
ZPNERE 2 R E operating in other jurisdiction (794) (856)
AR HIFIE B RS & Tax effect of non-deductible items 733 3,824
BARGIEEOHETE Tax effect of non-taxable items (2,449) (1,632)
RIERE R = 5EHY Tax effect of temporary differences
HigE not recognised (269) 600
RERRIBBHEORISHE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised = 267
WA RERTIBER Utilisation of tax losses previously
)=t not recognised (192) -
BEFEBERRE Over-provision in prior year (820) (1,414)
EoAh, Others 55 =
FriSiiF Income tax expense 25,253 15,668
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10.

112

BREF 10. EARNINGS PER SHARE
2015 2014
FET FA&TT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
B Earnings
RNARESR AL R T Profit attributable to owners of the Company 150,469 74,507
2015 2014
TR TH%
’000 ’000
RO EE Number of shares
TR AR h i I 2R Weighted average number of ordinary
(Ktat) shares (note) 502,450 409,402

BitaF - #£502,450,0008% & i A% 5T & H & £2014512
A318 It F & #9409,402,0008% & i@ % o0 # F
B REREEHEKEREERBHELER
17 #99,402,0000% & @R fn#EF ¥ & -
400,000,0008% & A% - BN R pE & AL 3E1T5EA
BB EITRGEE (FFIBEHMRME26) © IRENHE
REERBZE2014F12A31 B LB EFEET -

H E2015% N2014F12A31H IEFE AR A 7
EEEEBEERGD  ALSRESZHFEGRER
ZFFEE o

FmiEEREMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Note: Weighted average of 409,402,000 ordinary shares derived
from 502,450,000 ordinary shares for the year ended 31
December 2014, includes the weighted average of 9,402,000
ordinary shares issued immediately after the completion of

global offering and the over-allotment, in addition to the

400,000,000 ordinary shares, being the number of shares

in issue immediately after the completion of capitalisation

issue as detailed in note 26, deemed to have been issued

throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic

earnings per share as the Company had no dilutive potential

shares during the years ended 31 December 2015 and

2014.
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1. B2 11. DIVIDENDS
2015 2014
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AR B Interim dividends paid 25,123 197,353

BHZE2014F12H31B LEFE - RRFERITHLBR
RNEI([ R ) R BRERITH(BR)ERAF]
REZEXAARFIMRBARZAE MRREEIRR
IR PR 5.197,353,000 7T ©

H E2015%6 A30H 1L/~ 1E A H R B B & 5%5.0
Bl - & F£4925,123,000/8 & 2 2R RIENT ©

EZFHRERARBER10.08 - REKE
KIR2EERRAFASERB - KR EXL KRR
RF A BRRIIERMABE

For the year ended 31 December 2014, dividends amounted
to HK$197,353,000 were declared and paid by EGL Tours
Company Limited (“EGL Tours”) and EGL Tours (Japan)
Company Limited to the shareholders before they became
subsidiaries of the Company.

An interim dividend of HK5.0 cents per share totalling
approximately HK$25,123,000 for the six months ended 30
June 2015 has been declared and paid.

The directors have recommended a final dividend of
HK10.0 cents per share which is to be approved at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed dividend
is not reflected as a dividend payable in these consolidated
financial statements.
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12. E5F 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
EEHFMIEENT ¢ Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows:
HeRkEf MERRE
ik ENER RAL(HE)  BAGHEIER st
Discretionary
Salaries and
and other  performance Retirement
benefits bonuses scheme
Fee in kind (note)  contributions Total
TR TR TR TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
2015
HITEE Executive directors
3¢ Yuen Man Ying
HEE Huen Kwok Chuen
28l Leung Shing Chiu
FEH Lee Po Fun
BUHHTEE Independent non-executive directors
BrfiE Chan Kim Fai
B i Tang Koon Hung Eric
=ER Wong Lai Ming

114 FREZERERAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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12. EEHM 2

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

FekAw  BERRR

ik LY TERL(Frat)  BIRETEIRR @t
Discretionary
Salaries and
and other performance Retirement
benefits bonuses scheme
Fee in kind (note)  contributions Total
THT TR THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
2014
HITEF Executive directors
RXE Yuen Man Ying - 1,741 4,581 85 6,407
BEE Huen Kwok Chuen - 1,408 3,712 69 5,189
k| Leung Shing Chiu - 1,436 3,791 66 5,293
TEX Lee Po Fun - 1,386 3,712 66 5,164
- 5,971 15,796 286 22,053
BUIHITEE Independent non-executive directors
RiRE Chan Kim Fai 25 - - - 05
K Tang Koon Hung Eric 23 = - = 23
HEH Wong Lai Ming 21 - = = 21
69 - - - 69
69 5,971 15,796 286 22,122

Hiat BB RRBEADZEARAEERRELLHFHES
SHUEMETE

RE 22015 K2014F12A31H IEFE » &
BENELMEE o

Note: The discretionary and performance bonuses are determined
by reference to the Group’s performance and approved by
the remuneration committee.

No directors waived any emoluments during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014.
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13. I BAEEHIMAT 13. THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
REEBRELZZSEHMALTT 4822014 : 48) 5 Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
AANTIES  BHENHESE R EXHE12K © 54 Group, four (2014: four) were directors of the Company
T14% (2014 - 1B) ATHENS IO - whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note

12 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2014: one)

individual were as follows:

2015 2014

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fre MEMEYREF Salaries and other benefits in kind 866 837

)18 MR IEAL Discretionary and performance bonuses 896 1,422

RIRET B R Retirement scheme contributions 18 17

1,780 2,276

ST IEEEATHTMEELN T : The emoluments of the highest paid non-director fell within

the following bands:

2015 2014

AE AE

Number Number

of individual of individual

1,000,001/ 7C£2,000,000% 7  HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 -

2,000,001 7t 23,000,000/t  HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 - 1

BEffENTEREEBAENFMEE DT : The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management were within the following bands:

2015 2014

A AZ

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

F 251,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 5 6

1,000,001/ 7. 22,000,000  HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 4 2

2,000,001 523,000,000/ 7t  HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 - 1

116 FmiEEREMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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14. M5 ~ BB B3R

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BER
BENERE N SR A "E BExE At
Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
improvements equipment equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
THT TEL THEx THEL TEL THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2014%1 818 At 1 January 2014
A Cost 30,697 11,351 23,960 - 5,272 71,280
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (27,472) (11,185) (19,954) = (4,918) (63,529)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,225 166 4,006 - 354 7,751
#220145128318  For the year ended 31 December
LEFE 2014
ENREFE Opening net carrying amount 3,225 166 4,006 = 354 7,751
NE Additions 2,612 194 2,000 170 231 5,207
il Disposals (20) - - - - (20)
& Depreciation (1,695) (85) (1,816) (21) (116) (3,733)
EREHFE Closing net carrying amount 4,122 275 4,190 149 469 9,205
1R2014%F12831H% At 31 December 2014 and
2015€141A 1 January 2015
KA Cost 32,918 11,530 25,960 170 5,503 76,081
Rithe Accumulated depreciation (28,796) (11,255) (21,770) (21) (5,034) (66,876)
REFE Net carrying amount 4,122 275 4,190 149 469 9,205
EZ2015F12H318  For the year ended 31 December
LEE 2015
FYREFE Opening net carrying amount 4,122 275 4,190 149 469 9,205
e Additions 3,697 373 2,252 5 972 7,299
e Depreciation (2,220) (116) (1,827) (28) (196) (4,387)
ERREFE Closing net carrying amount 5,599 532 4,615 126 1,245 12,117
12015%12531 8 At 31 December 2015
A Cost 36,615 11,903 28,212 175 6,475 83,380
Zithe Accumulated depreciation (31,016) (11,371) (23,597) (49) (5,230) (71,263)
REFE Net carrying amount 5,599 532 4,615 126 1,245 12,117
2015% 3% 2015 Annual Report 117



Bt 7R &R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RN T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2015F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

15. JEfTHHE TR 15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

2015 2014
FiET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
F4) At beginning of the year
&N Cost 15,938 15,938
RS Accumulated amortisation (9,621) (8,008)
BREFE Net carrying amount 6,317 7,935
BZ12A31HILEE Year ended 31 December
FYRREFE Opening net carrying amount 6,317 7,935
BiE Amortisation (1,276) (1,618)
B Refund (5,041) _
FERREFEE Closing net carrying amount - 6,317
FR At end of the year
2% Cost 15,938 15,938
R Accumulated amortisation (10,897) (9,621)
RR(HeE) Refund (note) (5,041) -
BRENFE Net carrying amount - 6,317
2015 2014
Fi&xT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
A I Represented by:
EMBNEE Non-current assets - 4,645
mMENEE Current assets = 1,672
- 6,317

Hiat  REERAEE B il 38 ARG B R AR LE AR A -
TANEEMNRAOMRED LR M o

118 REBEZRERLDH

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Note: The Group has ceased the lease with the travel bus service

provider during the year. The remaining balance of prepaid

lease payments was then refunded.
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16. RBE QAR 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2015 2014
FH&T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
fEhEE A Share of net assets 2,467 =
JiE Ui Bt 21X R BR 3R Amount due from an associate 834 =
NN Amount due to an associate 4,594 =

U N E R BIRAREER  RERRE

RAFE - ANEED B R2015F 48 %2015F2
B & AAEBY F = 5 R MR E A
Al ZEMERNANEBEB AR ANSEBER
MIREARIRKITE - ZEHEARE/NRE -
IEERABEAEENFELTERK -

MR2015F12 31 H Bt & QA RIFFIBT ¢

Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

During the year, the Group set up two new associates with
independent third parties in Korea and Japan in April 2015
and February 2015 respectively. The primary business of
these associates is provision of inbound package tours
which is in alignment with the Group’s business. These
associates are of small scale and, accordingly, the directors
considered they are immaterial to the Group.

Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2015 are as

follows:
23t Ay
NGIES R i B FrisEmBT DL FEXEK
Place of

incorporation/

Name of company

operations

Percentage of

interest held Principal activities

RBERTHREARAR (TEGLFEE ) 72

EGL Tours Korea Co., Ltd. (“EGL Korea”) Korea
MR GHEGLHAB* (EGLH4E ) =N
Kabushiki Kaisha EGL Okinawa* Japan

(“EGL Okinawa”)

38% RERE R AIE KT T
Provision of inbound package
tours in Korea

38% B AR ERHEASFIRITE
Provision of inbound package
tours in Okinawa, Japan

. R BT E

English name for identification purpose only
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16. REEENRER2)

17.

120

B ERBE -

T X #E I AR EARNWEGLER B REGLA 48

M ERIE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information:

Set out below is the summarised financial information of
EGL Korea and EGL Okinawa which are accounted for using
equity method:

EGLEEE] EGL* 4 W3
EGL Korea EGL Okinawa Total
FHT AT FHIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
HZE2015512H31H L H/ Period ended 31 December 2015
s sk B 1E Profit or loss 4,429 (520) 3,909
HAb 2 E W E Other comprehensive income (226) 7 (219)
2H WS B Total comprehensive income 4,203 (5613) 3,690
EERIEEE 17. DEFERRED TAX ASSET

RAEERBEFERANELEHBEERE

Details of the deferred tax asset recognised and movements

HIBWT ¢ during the current and prior year are as follows:
2015 2014
FET FHIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
F4) At beginning of the year 766 605
PRz (F0BR ), ZT A (K13£9) (Charged)/Credited to profit or loss (note 9) (871) 161
FR At end of the year 395 766

RI|EIR  AERERAREHEROBBEEELD
732,085,0005 7t(2014 : 3,252,000/ 7T ) ° B R
K@ AR AITEAN - B AR LA RERAR
HEBRERAELERIEEE o Al A SR 4

R A ER A -

RBEZERARAT

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The Group has estimated unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$2,085,000 (2014: HK$3,252,000) at the
end of the reporting period. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these unused tax losses carried
forward by a subsidiary due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The deductible temporary differences can be
carried forward indefinitely.
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18. & 18. INVENTORIES

2015 2014
F#Ex AT
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Al EHE AP TR Merchandise for sale 7,300 3,622

19. B 5 EBWER 19. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
FET T
HK$°000 HK$’000
5 AR Trade receivables 1,710 1,485
BEXZHE  RNHREHR AEBRARBEZE The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are
SREWERMBRR DT ¢ not impaired as at the end of the reporting period, based on

invoice date, is as follows:

2015 2014
FHExT T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
0 - 90K 0 - 90 days 1,532 1,461
91 - 180K 91 — 180 days 178 24
1,710 1,485
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19. B S EWER &)

AEEERTESZEFPEEHNEE - BEA10
REIOX - RIFFIMA - AEBERBEZEHE
AR BRER D AT AN T -

19.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group has a policy of granting trade customers with
credit terms of generally 10 days to 90 days. The ageing
analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are not
impaired, based on due date, is as follows:

2015 2014

FHET FHEIT

HK$°000 HK$’000

R AR IR AR E Neither past due nor impaired 837 564

BEERHAR IR =[EA Past due less than 3 months 832 915
BEERHARE=Z Past due more than 3 months

7N E R 2 but less than 6 months 41 6

1,710 1,485

RBEEHR ARELESEPOHNAEED
ik AEBBEARERREZESEBEED
873,000/ 7T (2014 : 921,000 7T) ° REHATNAR
MENEZRUREAEBYZFER  MKE
BEAKEEZERHINXHEMCLE - —RME -
AEES PR FHRBRH A TARRIEMER
R7E °

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
trade receivables of approximately HK$873,000 (2014:
HK$921,000) that were past due but not impaired as there
was no recent history of default in respect of these trade
debtors. Trade receivables that were neither past due
nor impaired related to a large number of independent
customers that had a good track record of credit with the
Group. In general, the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

20. 5] &~ MR R HE b EWER 20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
FHT FHIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
H b e B8R Other receivables 21,842 17,929
Hia Deposits 8,844 7,605
A= Prepayments 90,992 78,558
121,678 104,092
122 RmEEERAER AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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21.

22.

FEUL R/ B BR X 21. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY
2015 2014
FH&T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AEBIARAR(AEIT]) Great Port Limited (“Great Port”) 2,503 2,503

ARFBHATEETRNESLLE - BE2EE - R
SIRERFEZT LT HEARETHRE -

FEUERE R AR EIER - B RIRERERE -

RBERR - BBRABTERASRBEEMEIM
MBEEZS -

RERBEEEBYUA RIKFRITER

22.

The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen Man
Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms.
Lee Po Fun, have equity interests in Great Port.

The amount due from a related company is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

At the end of the reporting period, the amount due from
Great Port represented rental deposits paid for rented
premises.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

2015 2014

FExT FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

RITFERNEFRS Cash at banks and in hand 364,999 308,380
THER Fixed deposits 110,111 38,037
475,110 346,417

S IR TIER Less: Pledged bank deposits (21,965) (22,039)
HeMIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 453,145 324,378

AEBHRERECEENREERSARTE
KA EIRF B KT BRI ERMIZ®BITT
A R E B EHRITE R R20159F12 31
B EFHMERNF01%%E3.4% (2014 : 0.1%%E
2.8%) ' REEAHEARR & =@ A sk AR ©

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
deposits carrying interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates and short-term bank deposits carrying
interests at prevailing market interest rate ranging from
0.1% to 3.4% (2014: 0.1% to 2.8%) per annum as at 31
December 2015, with an original maturity of three months or
less.
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2. REBHREEEBYWURIKBIRITER 22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

(4) PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

MO015FE12H31E  "REBE FHETFE ALY As at 31 December 2015, certain bank deposits of the
21,965,000/ 7 (2014 : 22,039,000/ 7T ) #H IR 45 Group amounted to approximately HK$21,965,000 (2014:
RIT  EARREAEENETE = EERFR HK$22,039,000) were pledged to banks as securities for
LK EY IR o letters of guarantee issued to certain third parties on behalf

of the Group.

23. B EMER 23. TRADE PAYABLES
B I EMEBENZE RS ET R M ERER A IE The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
KEEMAR @ BEA1KXEZ0K - RIEESHR terms agreed with different suppliers, which normally range
EMERCREEHEZEZT HE—2) - RIMEEIK - from 1 day to 30 days. Based on the receipts of services
REEE S EMEROREOITAT ¢ and goods, which normally coincided with the invoice dates,

the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

2015 2014

FHET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 - 90k 0 - 90 days 50,505 53,285
91 - 180K 91 — 180 days 1,246 244
181 — 365K 181 — 365 days 118 59
HiB365K Over 365 days 168 98
52,037 53,686

24. FEEtFIE - BHET & R E M EFTER 24. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
OTHER PAYABLES

2015 2014

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEstE R Accrued expenses 7,960 8,083
BEWERFFT& Customer deposits received 127,779 114,874
HAs R AR Other payables 59,127 61,413
194,866 184,370
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25 BN RIEEISNBSNLHERE 25. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RARBEAEBRY Financial liabilities at fair value through
THEE: profit or loss:
ESmIA Derivative financial instrument
—INEIRHAG 4 — Foreign currency forward contracts - 170
INERHIENIEEREIMARAOTERUAR The foreign currency forward contracts represented the
EEEHER B & S FINE o exchange of notional amount denominated in Renminbi

(“RMB”) at the contract rate on the specified maturity date.

REEER - REBHINERRAENBEEELRS The total notional principal amount of the outstanding foreign
FHAOT currency forward contracts at the end of the reporting

period is as follows:

2015 2014

FET T

HK$°000 HK$’000

HEBTITBRARK Sell HK$ for RMB = 7,673
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26. Br7A 26. SHARE CAPITAL
£ &5
Number Amount
T FATT
‘000 HK$’000
SEIE Authorised
FAR0. 18T H) E AR Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
R2014F1 18 At 1 January 2014 = -
SE RSB 2 Initial authorised share capital upon
46 7ETE R incorporation 3,800 380
12014411138 Increase in authorised share capital on
VAT BRARIE N 13 November 2014 996,200 99,620
720145 K% 2015512831 B At 31 December 2014 and 2015 1,000,000 100,000
2HE |
Number Amount
Tz FHET
‘000 HK$'000
ERTRBEZEBRR Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid
R2014F1 A1 H (Hit(@) At 1 January 2014 (note (a)) 3,315 3,315
SEEMHES Arising from group reorganisation (3,315) (3,315)
EEEHEEXETRG First issue of shares upon group reorganisation 1 -
SESHERE ZRBITRG Second issue of shares upon group
(KiiE (b)) reorganisation (note (b)) 9 1
BRI, (A () Issue of shares upon capitalisation (note (c)) 399,990 39,999
EHREEREITRG (K2 () Issue of shares upon global offering (note (d)) 100,000 10,000
BEEAL S R B TIR D (ATt (e)) Issue of shares upon over-allotment (note (e)) 2,450 245
R20145 K% 20155128318 At 31 December 2014 and 2015 502,450 50,245
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26. B (&)

Mt

A E TR SEER R AR RN R2014F11
H28 H B 5Tk £+ & BT ¢

R2014F1 A1 B KRB A M AR A 42 %58 -

M2014F11 138 » AR FLAK(E61,198,1637%
TRREEERERREEESEERAANES
AR+ BIZAA B A R B B 2R fir B K 25 479,000%
ABRFI S R M) T imAR -

BIER2014F11AIBE BBMEmMAFER
EEERRBAQR RN EERERERNLY
39,999,000 T AR  WIAZZ L FEIEHEE
44 '£399,990,0000% & 38 A%

BE2HREE RERI1398 THERZET
100,000,000 & B EE0. 1B TN EMAL © LK
8 (BRI 1D 24 7H 2 A1) 49139,000,000/8 7T ©

B R20145F12 A19H 58 Ak K 17 (F B 58 Ao A% 12
Ms ' ARAFIKERIIGE THBRETAH
2,450,0000% % @p%

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

The movements in share capital above arose from a group

reorganisation and completion of the listing of the Company’s

shares on the Stock Exchange on 28 November 2014 as detailed

below:

(@)

The share capital as at 1 January 2014 represented the
aggregate amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries.

On 13 November 2014, the Company acquired the entire
share capital of EGL Management Group Company Limited
from Evergloss in consideration of HK$61,198,163, which the
Company allotted and issued 9,000 ordinary shares, credited
as fully paid, to Evergloss.

Pursuant to written resolutions passed on 13 November
2014, the directors authorised to capitalise approximately
HK$39,999,000 from the amount standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company and applied
such amount to pay up in full at par of 399,990,000 ordinary
shares.

Pursuant to the global offering, 100,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of HK$1.39 per share
for a total consideration (before share issuance expenses) of
approximately HK$139,000,000.

In connection with the exercise of the over-allotment option
completed on 19 December 2014, the Company issued a
total of 2,450,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$1.39 per
share.
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27.

128 RBEZRERLDQH

(G

AEEFRRED  HBHNGERRBIRA -
REmANREEERBEOIT

Bt a8
& B A 0 5 B RR IR AN A R BT A0 P S SR R
BARBEHITROEEZEED °

=N
AEBEHRERENHNBAR ZIREMAREARE
BB ARMNERTRAREBELHNERE

S it
AEBHSNERFBERBLEBINEB LB ERT R
ARB2INEEHEN ZH °

EE R
REEREEREBELBRMEMA IO —KER
HHERKBAR - RRiERITHE (JRPFI ) BIR
NaE - BREBRFKEEHRYEITTR - AREED
25% i mAEREEME  EERBEINZA
7] B& A"50%H) 7K F o 720154 %2014 12 531
B SAERFEEZED B A RRAMNS0% ° JEE
BB A S ©

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

27. RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the investment costs in subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Foreign exchange reserve

Foreign exchange reserve of the Group represents the
exchange differences on translation of the foreign operations
and associates into presentation currency of the Company.

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve of the Group represents EGL Tours (Macau)
Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated in Macau
and limited by quotas, which is required under the Macau
Commercial Code Article 377 to set aside a minimum of
25% of profit after taxation to the legal reserve until the
balance of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50%
of the company’s share capital. At 31 December 2015 and
2014, the legal reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiary’s
share capital. Legal reserve is not distributable.
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28. FERAHE A&

AR BN B IR AERTEIR2014F 11 F13HEK
BHOE ©

PR IR T -

B2014%11 H28H i - BBAREFT SN B REA10
FoRBEBERESS  EF2EMNBELERNE
ER2EEVAEELRBERARTRNOHZEL -
REEMERUATERS © (AR RRMAELE
B 2 49 B HATE B 2 AT A 3R R AR A9 MR T AE (i)
RAARBRMARBEERLBEREZZHBHAAE
R BRI FIHWTE K
ROEE - HEEREZZHAIREL R H&28
BB o

ERBHBRERBREERHEABIE2014
F11A28HEFH0F) 2 MAMO AT EITE - B
BRHBRENTEHNRAERETLMELEL
RAE AR NREE - X BT EBRERER
H B HRF0F 2 i - WRIRFRIEZIGXH
BR ©

RS AR i ot 118 MMEMR R BT A AR 1T
155 O B A% 1 58 (R 7N 2 ) 3R B AR 92 A {] L 4th B A
FHEIRTBE IR B AR M S T TR D B H &
BTN SEAREEZIREE RENMLEITEKIER
NABEITROBI10% (MG RBRER SR E %
TR EI %) - B150,000,0000% °

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by the Company was approved by the shareholders
on 13 November 2014.

A summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out below:

The Share Option Scheme became effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on 28 November 2014. Under
the Share Option Scheme, the directors shall, in its
absolute discretion select and make an offer to any eligible
participants to subscribe for shares of the Company at a
subscription price being not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of the
offer of grant; (i) the average closing prices of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (i) the nominal
value of the share. The offer of a grant of options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer.

The options granted shall be exercisable in whole or in
part in the effective option period (i.e. 10 years from the
commencing date on 28 November 2014). The exercise
period of the options granted is determined and notified by
the directors to the grantee thereof at the time of making an
offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period
of 10 years from the date of the grant of the option is made,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted at any time under
this Share Option Scheme together with options which may
be granted under any other share option schemes for the
time being of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue immediately
following the completion of the global offering and the
capitalisation issue (but taking no account of any shares
issued upon over-allotment), being 50 million shares.
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28.

ZS

130

B ETE (2

REE RBAEFELEBBEBRETZR D EM
B8 ML HE o 720154 K2014%12H31H @ W E (T
AR IR AR A 5T B A i R TE R AR - BB R
RN R T A AR AR S S ERR R A ® |
TEHRER o

BIAFTE

REBEIZBEBRHERATES([RES])ETE
BB HIE B 82000912818 £z & #Hl A
B EEOI2EE —ZEBREZTEAGEZ
BEEEE  REGEREBHEN - BERES
FTE EXEHEESREERBARAZS%S AN
ZArEIMR(ZBRR s T ABBEAEKTE) -
AU A LR 5201446 818 #H25,000/8 012
= 230,000 7T © s B S A Sl B KAV 5 B (R

\

RAFEE REBSINEBEIHRBED A
6,183,0005 7t (2014 : 5,070,000/ 7T ) ° AN4FE
RAERUMEFTIAKEIR AR -

RBEZERAERLT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

28.

290.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No share options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the current and prior years. At 31 December
2015 and 2014, there were no outstanding options granted
under the Share Option Scheme. Share options do not
confer rights to the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Schemes Authority in Hong Kong, with effect from 1
December 2000, the Group participates in the MPF Scheme
operated by an approved trustee in Hong Kong and
makes contributions for its eligible employees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant income was
increased from HK$25,000 to HK$30,000 from 1 June
2014. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

During the year, the aggregate amounts of employer’s
contributions made by the Group were approximately
HK$6,183,000 (2014: HK$5,070,000). No forfeited
contribution was available for offset against existing
contributions during the year.
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30. AN E ZEATEHR R R B 30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

@ AINE]ZEEA R (a) Statement of financial position of the Company
2015 2014
et F#Ex TET
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FRBEE Non-current asset
REB AR ZRE Investment in a subsidiary 61,198 61,198
REEE Current assets
A& BARE Deposits, prepayments and other
o {th pE UL AR receivables 497 314
ARG Amounts due from subsidiaries 163,370 114,728
REMRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 90,769 4,010
254,636 119,052
=N Current liabilities
FEE FRIE & H AL FE BR Accruals and other payables 18,829 5,546
R B A A BR K Amount due to a subsidiary - 382
18,829 5,928
MENEEFE Net current assets 235,807 113,124
EEFE Net assets 297,005 174,322
= EQUITY
R&ZR Share capital 26 50,245 50,245
f# Reserves 30(b) 246,760 124,077
fERAREE Total equity 297,005 174,322
REREZS On behalf of the Board of Directors
RN 28
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
WITES HWITES
Executive Director Executive Director
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30. ANF TR E BAEE &) 30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) KI\GlREE (b) Reserves of the Company
(REtE58),/
IR iaRE RE BT HE
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
THET THET TET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
201451818 At 1 January 2014 - - -
EEEHEB TR Issue of shares upon group
(Ktat26(b)) reorganisation (note 26(b)) 61,197 - 61,197
BRI D Issue of shares upon
(H1a£26(c)) capitalisation (note 26(c)) (39,999) = (39,999)
2RI ERFEITARM  Issue of shares upon global
(Kizt26(d)) offering (note 26(d)) 129,000 - 129,000
FREARCE RS EETTARM)  Issue of shares upon
(Kit26()) over-allotment (note 26(g)) 3,161 - 3,161
F&An 31 TR 2 Share issuance expenses (8,024) - (8,024)
FEBE Loss for the year - (21,258) (21,258)

M2014F12831HK At 31 December 2014 and

2015F1A1H 1 January 2015 145,335 (21,258) 124,077
F 5 A Profit for the year - 147,806 147,806
B R EAR B (A7a£11) Interim dividends paid (note 717) - (25,123) (25,123)
R2015%12A318 At 31 December 2015 145,335 101,425 246,760
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31. SUBSIDIARIES

List of subsidiaries
At 31 December 2015, the Company had direct or indirect

EESEEER  ZZEARIEALABRAT - interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private
HEFEEHHET - companies with limited liability, the particulars of which are
set out as follows:
AL
NEER TEh BERTRBRRE FE{L B TEEK
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of company operations share capital interest Principal activities
B &
Directly Indirectly
RRBEEREEERAA REBRAES 337,025/ Az 17 - 100% - REBER
£1£337,025% T
EGL Management Group BVI 337,025 shares totalling Investment holding
Company Limited United States dollar
(‘US$”) 337,025
REERTHARAA BE 3,315,000 & & #k - - 100% RERTE - BRTERR
£$£3,315,000/8 T B M IRA T AR A E R B AR
EGL Tours Company Limited Hong Kong 3,315,000 ordinary Provision of package tours,
shares totalling FIT Products and ancillary travel
HK$3,315,000 related products and services
REERTH(BER)ERRE  FE 221k E @R - 100% R B AR R RIT
HH22158T - BETEmREEMT
HRTTAE R E o X PR 7
EGL Tours (Japan) Company Hong Kong 221 ordinary shares Provision of outbound package
Limited totalling HK$221 tours, FIT Products and ancillary
travel related products and
services in Japan
RERTHERAA BE 550,000 & & - - 100% HEHRS
(THRRRIT4L ) £ 3£550,000/ 7
i-Evertravel Company Limited Hong Kong 550,000 ordinary shares Sales of air tickets
(“i-Evertravel”) totalling HK$550,000
REERTHORM)FERAR R 1,800,000/2M 7 - 100% RERTE - BRTERR
BB IR T IR m R AR
EGL Tours (Macau) Company Macau Macau Pataca Provision of package tours,

Limited

(‘MOP”)1,800,000

FIT Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
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31. BB AR (&) 31. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
KB I\ 5] 7 (&) List of subsidiaries (Continued)
SRR
NRER Bews BRTRBERAE FE{L IR AE TEXH
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of company operations share capital interest Principal activities

=k ik
Directly Indirectly

RREER(BAR)ERAA RBRAHE 100K - £21,000%T - 100% REER
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited ~ BVI 100 shares totalling Investment holding
US$1,000
RBEER(EMN AR EERZHES  100RERR - 51,0005 - 100% REER
EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited BVI 100 shares totalling Investment holding
US$1,000
RREREEEERAA HBEZHS  1008RM% - A£100ET - 100% REZRMK
EGL Investment Group BVI 100 shares totalling Investment holding
Company Limited US$100
REERE(hE)BR A B TREER - 5218 - 100% REER
EGL Investment (China) Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling Investment holding
Company Limited HK$1
EVIRITHRHERAR a4 2,000,0008%A% {7 - - 62% RAEREASIKITE
=hvsichrdl) £#£20,000,000%7 &%
Hit Travel Service Co. Taiwan 2,000,000 shares totalling Provision of inbound package
Ltd* (“Hit Travel”) Taiwan dollar 20,000,000 tours in Taiwan
= &+ Zipang. S. S* =F: 200817 - - 80% 1A A AR R4 fic e 28 AR
([Zipang ) £ #£10,000,000H
Kabushiki Kaisha Zipang. Japan 200 shares totalling Provision of travel bus services
S. S* (“Zipang”) Japanese Yen in Japan

(“JPY”) 10,000,000

* R TR E R & English name for identification purpose only
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SR

32.

MtB /AT (&)

BB~ Bl 557 (&)
FR - KEBEDRIN2015F12 A X2015F11 AR
BERBEAREBYE=FKRIMKTHBAR o

BLEKE A RN REBRBETEMEBES

iR

INF[E 2 IR R B FE 491,864,00078 (2014 -
T) » E P Zipanglh#7126,00087C(2014 : ) » M
=57 RTTAE BI{E #91,738,0008 7T (2014 « &) » 3%
EIW IR AEBEREF100%EXNM B R F 2 Ik
AR TR BEAX o

31.

32.

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

List of subsidiaries (Continued)

During the year, the Group set up two new subsidiaries with
independent third parties in Taiwan and Japan in December
2015 and November 2015 respectively.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the reporting period.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The total non-controlling interests for the year is approximately
HK$1,864,000 (2014: Nil), of which approximately HK$126,000
(2014: Nil) is for Zipang and approximately HK$1,738,000 (2014:
Nil) is attributed to Hit Travel. The non-controlling interests of
these subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the Group are
considered to be immaterial.
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33.

136
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@) Significant related party transactions during the

year
2015 2014
HtaE FET FAT
Notes HK$°000 HK$’'000
X TEEATRZHEE Rental paid to a related company
— KRBT — Great Port (i) 15,303 13,936
A [ & A AU ER Management fee received from
ZEIRE a related company
— EGL J-Mart Limited — EGL J-Mart Limited (“J-Mart”)
([J-Mart ) (i) - 15
R T XHE A R ATE Provision of FIT Products and
EEMMEHNRARZ ancillary travel related products and
BHBTEmN&EBE services to a company controlled
IRTTHE B fh & AR 75 by a subsidiary’s former director
— Ever Win Company — Ever Win Company Limited
Limited ([Ever Win]) (“Ever Win”) (i) - 41
TLIREIRITE « BRTT Amount received for provision of
B R B R f T AR package tours, FIT Products and
Em& R REEEA R ancillary travel related products and
Wz %8 services from a related company
— KRBT — Great Port (i) 147 =
MEER R Acquisition of property, plant and
7 K %A equipment from a related company
— KRBT — Great Port (ii) — 170
Bt A RIBIZHRTTE - Costs charged by associates
BHRTEmMNEBE regarding the provision of package
i1 T AR B8 2= on B AR 7S tours, FIT Products and ancillary
I ER 2 & F travel related products and services
— EGL#4E - EGL Okinawa (i) 39,651 -
— EGLEE — EGL Korea (i) 19,643 -

FmiEEREMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Significant related party transactions during the
year (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses paid to a related company were
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with terms of the lease agreements entered
into between the Group and the related company.

(i) The transactions were conducted on the basis of
mutually agreed terms.

The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen
Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing
Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun, are also directors and have
equity interests in Great Port and J-Mart. Mr. Lui Lok
Pun, resigned as a director of EGL Tours and i-Evertravel
on 31 December 2014, has an equity interest in Ever
Win.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of

M : key management during the year was as follows:
2015 2014
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHEE R Short-term employee benefits 32,878 30,443
BB 1R Post-employment benefits 457 444
33,335 30,887
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34. BERREEHGKIE 34. CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

(a) EBEXAEE (a) Capital commitments
BARNEBBEYZE  BERZHE &N Capital commitments in respect of purchases of
BT property, plant and equipment for the Group are as
follows:

2015 2014
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BERT#B KBS Contracted but not provided for 5,284 306

(b) ZEHEFRE (b) Operating lease commitments
AEEREEEHEMHES TYWE  BA The Group leases a number of premises, office
R RIS - HE 2V ZHEBARIEF equipment and travel buses under operating leases.
(2014 : 1&26%F) © The leases run for an initial period of one to six years

(2014: one to six years).
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34. ERAREEREKRIE®)

(b)
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34. CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)

The Group had total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

2015 2014
FExT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

HEWE Rented premises
1R Within one year 25,701 24,560
F2FEFESF(SHEMF) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 18,908 39,918
44,609 64,478

WA Office equipment
1R Within one year 2,823 2,824
FOFEFESF(SHEMSE) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 7,088 9,871
9,911 12,695

HEREES Rented travel buses
1R Within one year 33,575 24,008
F2FEFSF (T EREMF) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 47,592 44,700
5F LA+ Over five years 289 -
81,456 68,708
135,976 145,881
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives include:

(@) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

(b)  to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, capital expenditures and strategic investment
opportunities. The Group does not currently adopt any
formal dividend policy.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debts
or sell assets to reduce debt.

Management of the Company regards total equity as
capital. The amount of capital as at 31 December 2015
and 2014 amounted to approximately HK$361,073,000
and HK$233,999,000 respectively, which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected
capital expenditures and the projected strategic investment
opportunities.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposures to interest rate, credit, liquidity and foreign
currency risks arise in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The board of directors meets periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s
exposure to market risk (including principal changes in
interest rates and foreign currency rates), credit risk and
liquidity risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative
strategy regarding risk management.

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises
from bank deposits which earn interests at floating
or fixed rates. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group did not have any interest bearing borrowings.
The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group
has not formulated a policy to manage the interest
rate risk. The directors considered that the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of which and cause a
financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from
granting credits to customers in the ordinary course of
its operations and is limited to the carrying amounts of
financial assets recognised at the end of the reporting
period, as summarised in note 36(f).
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Crediit risk (Continued)

The Group’s trade and other receivables are actively
monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit
risk. The Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk from any single counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. The
Group’s bank balances are deposited with major
banks in Hong Kong, Japan and Macau. The Group
has no other significant exposure to credit risk.

With respect to credit risk arising from the amounts
due from a related company and an associate,
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
repayment default of counterparties is limited as the
counterparties have good credit history and the Group
does not expect any significant loss of uncollected
advances from these entities.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
throughout the year and are considered to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
other financial assets.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements in the short and long
terms. The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
operations to meet its debt obligations. The Group
relies on internally generated funds as a significant
source of liquidity.
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36. M EKREE 2

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) BB (42) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
RMERR - REBERAAREIRERARZ The maturity profile of the financial liabilities as at the
SRaENSHEERNT end of the reporting period, based on the contracted
undiscounted payments, was as follows:
BRREE
REEE 4AReR= B PR=BB Z=Z+={EAR
Total
contractual Less than Three to
Carrying undiscounted three twelve
amount cash flow  On demand months months
THT THT THT THT FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
2015
FTESRER Non-derivatives:
B SRR Trade payables 52,037 52,037 8,945 42,451 641
FEztZIB R EMEREE  Accruals and other payables 67,087 67,087 16,448 13,065 37,574
AL NG Amount due to an associate 4,594 4,594 4,594 = =
123,718 123,718 29,987 55,516 38,215
2014
ETEERER Non-derivatives:
BIENE Trade payables 53,686 53,686 6,883 46,612 191
fEstZ B R M ERBR  Accruals and other payables 69,496 69,496 10,950 12,690 45,856
123,182 123,182 17,833 59,302 46,047
BEETELREETE © Derivatives settled net:
SNEERHA L Foreign currency forward
contracts 170 170 - 170 -
123,352 123,352 17,833 59,472 46,047
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures arise from the income from provision
of package tours, ancillary travel related services
as well as costs of services consumed in hotel
accommodation and ancillary travel related services
in currencies other than the group entities’ functional
currency. Approximately 44.3% (2014: 45.9%) of costs
and approximately 3.4% (2014: 8.1%) of the Group’s
turnover are denominated in currencies other than the
group entities’ functional currency for the year.

The Group also has translation currency exposures.
Such exposures arise from the balances of assets and
liabilities in currencies other than the group entities’
functional currency. The carrying amounts of the
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

2015 2014
FHB T F&IT
HK$°000 HK$’000
EE Assets

HE JPY 29,199 47,112
AR RMB 36,009 37,660
65,208 84,772

=L Liabilities
HE JPY 34,719 25,035
AR RMB 74 170
34,793 25,205

RBEZERARAT
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The management monitors foreign currency exposure
by closely monitoring the movements of foreign
currency rates. The management has set up a policy
to require group entities to manage their foreign
exchange risk against their respective functional
currency.

The directors consider that the Group’s exposure
on foreign currency risk in respect of MOP is not
significant because MOP is effectively pegged with
HKS$.

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s profit for the year and retained earnings
in response to reasonably possible changes in the
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period.
The 5% rate is used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s best assessment of the
possible changes in foreign exchange rates.

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the
reporting year and held constant throughout the year.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

2015 2014
FERMNRREBF F e N AR B A
EH (T A/ CFBE)
Increase/(decrease) in Increase/(decrease) in
profit for the year and profit for the year and
retained earnings retained earnings
| AR H AR
JPY RMB JPY RMB
FHET FHET FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
[EREE) : Changes in exchange rate:
VB ITH INE ETH5%  HK$ appreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies 230 (1,500) (922) (1,565)
BT H INE TR #%5% HK$ depreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies (230) 1,500 922 1,665
NI EE (e) Fair value

s
MREREHIEE - 36N RIZA
AREBEAEZeRMITAZREEREAAE
BHEE -

N TRBEINIRAABESHE D Z
BEARZEBRTADN :

|

5

JL IR

FH1: MHREEXAFEEERMS L
WECRERE);

Fh2: HEEXABME  FRITHM
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%) (AERITE) ) 2K
mIEARE + &

FH3: HEEXREMSEAERAR
EMEHEEN2B(TAEES
80 -

RBEZERAERLT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Due to the short term nature, the carrying value of
financial instruments not measured at fair value as
detailed in note 36(f) approximates fair value.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of the Fair
Value Hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

Level 38: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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36. MEEKESIE %) 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(e) LAIBEE) (e) Fair value (Continued)
£R— £8= &= CEl
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAT FAT FABT FABT
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

A2014F12H31H At 31 December 2014

BAREBEA Financial liabilities at fair value
BRMELRMEE :  through profit or loss:
PTESmI A Derivative financial instrument
—INER B A 4 — Foreign currency forward
contracts = 170 = 170
SNERHEHNZ AR BEDZEEAR LER The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts
WEMTANRTAABE(FEEAR) - was with reference to the current fair value of other
instruments that are substantially the same (subject to
appropriate adjustments).
RAFE  BEoRHEEXCHBEEARE There were no transfers of financial asset or financial
BER— —ZHEE - liability between Level 1 and Level 2 of the Fair Value

Hierarchy during the year.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

36. MBEKEIER#)

(N HHEANE D2 2@ EENRE EHE (f)  Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

HAMBHRKRF 2 ZREASES RAT

category

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

SREERSRAEER - statement of financial position related to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:
2015 2014
FExT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
ERMEE Financial assets
ERRERGIE(BRERE Loans and receivables (including cash
KBEZEEY): and cash equivalents):
5 e W AR Trade receivables 1,710 1,485
e R EA AR Deposits and other receivables 30,686 25,534
FEUN R A Al BR K Amount due from a related company 2,503 2,503
JE Wi Bt = N BIBR X Amount due from an associate 834 =
EIRIRITF K Pledged bank deposits 21,965 22,039
BE MBS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 453,145 324,378
510,843 375,939
TREE Financial liabilities
RS AT 2 Financial liabilities measured at
SRAE: amortised cost:
B O EMNER Trade payables 52,037 53,686
JEETFIA M B A e BR Accruals and other payables 67,087 69,496
JETEE A Al BR R Amount due to an associate 4,594 -
123,718 123,182
BRAREEFAER Financial liabilities at fair value through
NErEE : profit or loss:
SN IR HR A 49 Foreign currency forward contracts = 170
123,718 123,352
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